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DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AIIDITORS REPORT 

To the Honorable Mr. Bamey Arceneaux, Mayor 
And the Meinbers of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

Report on the Auðit of the Financial Staternents 

Opinions 

We have audited the accoinpanying financial stateinents of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each inajor fund, and the aggregate reinaining fund infonnation of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana 
(the City), as of and for the year then ended May 3 1, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position ofthe governinental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund infonnation of the City of Gonzales, Louisiana, as of May 3 1, 2022, and the respective changes 
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basisfor Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. 0ur responsibilities under those standards are further described 
in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section ofour report. We are required 
to be independent ofthe City ofGonzales, Louisiana and to ineet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stateinents in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
fmancial statements that are free froin inaterial inisstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fmancial stateinents, manageinent is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Gonzales, Louisianas ability to 
continue as a going concem for twelve months beyond the fmancial statement date, including any currently 
known infonnation that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

1124 S. Burnside Ave, Suite 300A l Gonzaies, LA, 70737 l 225.228.5800  l  ddrcpas.com 



Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofthe Fina,iciai Stalements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgeiy, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the flnancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment anð maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe flnancial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and desigu and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanðing ofinternal control relevant to the audit in order to desigu audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Gonzales, Louisianas internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation ofthe financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the City of Gonzales, Louisianas ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identifled during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles genera1ly accepted in the United States of America require that the managements 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10, budgetary comparison schedule on page 55, schedule ofchanges 
in net opeb liability and related ratios on page 56, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability 
on page 57, schedu1e ofpension contributions on page 58, and notes to the schedule ofproportionate share of 
the net pension Iiabi1ity and schedu1e ofpension contributions on page 59 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility ofmanagement and, although not a part ofthe basic 
flnancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an 
essential part of flnancial reporting for placing the basic flnancia1 statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methoðs of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with managements responses to our inquiries, the basic flnancial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic flnancial statements. We do not express an opinion 
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or providc any assurancc on thc information bccausc thc limitcd proccdurcs do not providc us with sufficicnt 
cvidcncc to cxprcss an opinion or providc any assurancc. 

Supplementaiy Information 

Our audit was conductcd for thc purposc of fonTning opinions on thc financial statcmcnts that collcctivcly 
comprisc thc Citys basic financial statcmcnts. Thc combining and individual non-major fund financial 
statcmcnts, schcdulc ofper dicm paid, schcdulc of compcnsation, bcncfits, and othcr paymcnts to agcncy hcad 
or chicf cxccutivc officcr, and justicc systcm funding schcdulc-collccting/disbursing cntity arc prcscntcd for 
thc purposcs of additional analysis and arc not a rcquircd part of thc basic financial statcmcnts. Thc schcdulc 
of cxpcnditurcs of fcdcral awards is prcscntcd for purposcs of additional analysis as rcquircd by Titie 2 Us. 
Code of Federai Reguiations Part 200, Unform  Administrative Requirement, Cost Principies, and Audit 
Requirementsfor Federal Awards, and is also not a rcquircd part of thc basic financial statcmcnts. 

Thc combining and individual non-major fund financial statcmcnts, schcdulc of per dicm paid, schcdulc of 
compcnsation, bcncfits, and othcr paymcnts to agcncy hcad or chicf cxccutivc officcr, justicc systcm funding 
schcdulc-collccting/disbursing cntity, and thc schcdulc of cxpcnditurcs of fcdcral awards arc thc rcsponsibility 
of managcmcnt and wcrc dcrivcd from and rclatc dircctly to thc undcrlying accounting and othcr rccords uscd 
to prcparc thc basic fmancial statcmcnts. Thc infonnation has bccn subjcctcd to thc auditing proccdurcs applicd 
in thc audit of thc basic financial statcmcnts and ccrtain additional proccdurcs, including comparing and 
rcconciling such infonnation dircctly to thc undcrlying accounting and othcr rccords uscd to prcparc thc basic 
fmancial statcmcnts or to thc basic financial statcmcnts thcmsclvcs, aiid othcr additional proccdurcs in 
accordancc with auditing standards gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica. In our opinion, thc 
combining and individual non-major fund financial statcmcnts, schcdulc of per dicm paid, schcdulc of 
compcnsation, bcncfits, and othcr paymcnts to agcncy hcad or chicf cxccutivc officcr, justicc systcm funding 
schcdulc-collccting/disbursing cntity, and thc schcdulc of cxpcnditurcs of fcdcral awards arc fairly statcd, in all 
matcrial rcspccts, in rclation to thc basic financial statcmcnts as a wholc. 

Other Reporting Requireð by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordancc with Government Auditing Standards, wc havc also issucd our rcport datcd Octobcr 28, 2022 on 
our considcration of thc City of Gonzalcs, Louisiana s intcmal control ovcr financial rcporting and on our tcsts 
ofits compliancc with ccrtain provisions oflaws, rcgulations, contracts, and grant agrccmcnts and othcr mattcrs. 
Thc purposc ofthat rcport is solcly to dcscribc thc scopc ofour tcsting ofintcmal control ovcr fmancial rcporting 
and compliancc and thc rcsults of that tcsting, and not to providc an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of thc City of 
Gonzalcs, Louisianas intcmal control ovcr fmancial rcporting or on compliancc. That rcport is an intcgral part 
of an audit perfonncd in accordancc with Government Auditing Standards in considcring thc City of Gonzalcs, 
Louisiana s intcmal control ovcr financial rcporting and compliancc. 

Octobcr 28, 2022 
Gonzalcs, Louisiana 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

This section of Citys annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the Citys financial 
performance during the fiscal year that ended on May 31, 2022. This document focuses on the current years 
activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts in comparison with the prior years information (where 
available). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Citys combined total net position increased by $6,628,287 or 8 percent over the course of this 
years operations. Net position ofthe governmental activities increased approximately $3.7 million and 
increased approximately $2.9 million of the business-type activities. 

• During the year, the Citys governinental activities expenses were approximately $3.7 million less than 
the $26.8 million generated in charges for services, taxes, grants and contributions, and other revenue. 
In the Citys business-type activities, expenses were approximately $2.9 million less than the $ 1 1 .2 
million generated in charges for services, grants and contributions, and general revenues. 

• The General Fund has a transfer of $70,000 from the Capital Project Fund and $2,900 from the 
Enterprise Fund. Capital Projects Fund transferred $3,4 18, 158 to the Enterprise Fund. Special revenue 
fund-Conway EDD transferred $137,699 to the Capital Projects Fund. General Fund reported an 
increase in fund balance of$2,988,4 19, Capita1 Projects Fund reported a decrease in fund balance of 
$2,062,602, and Enterprise Fund reported an increase in net position of $2,886,837. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of four parts - managements discussion and ana1ysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, required supplementary information, and other supplementary information. The basic 
financial statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City: 

• The first two statements are government-wide flnancial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the Citys overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individua1 parts of the Citys 
government, reporting the Citys operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 

• The governinental funds statements tell how genera1 government services were financed in the 
short term as well as what remains for future spending. 

• Proprietary fund statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities 
the government operates 1ike businesses, such as water and sewer system. 

The financial statements a1so include notes that explain some ofthe information in the financial statemcnts and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information 
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. Table A-1 shows how the required 
parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. 

Table A- 1 summarizes the major features of the Citys financial statements, including the portion ofthe Citys 
government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of 
managements discussion and ana1ysis explains the structure ofcontents ofeach ofthe statements. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

Table A-1 
Government-

 

Wide Governmental 
Statements Funds 

Proprietary 
Fund 

Entire City The activities of the 
Government City that are not 

proprietary or fiduciary, 
such as general government, 
public safety, streets and 
drainage, sanitation, recreation 
and buildings and grounds, civic 
center, and code enforcement 

Scope 

Required 
financial 
statements 

Accounting 
basis and 
measurements 
focus 

Type of 
asset/liability 
information 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

• Statement of 
net position 

• Statement of 
activities 

Accrual 
accounting and 
econoniic 
resources focus 

A11 assets and 
liabilities, both 
flnancial and 
capital, and 
short-term and 
long-term 

AII revenues and 
expenses during 
the year, 
regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid  

• Balance Sheet 
• Statement of 

revenues, 
expenditures, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus 

On1y assets expected to 
be used up and 
liabilities that come due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter; no capital 
assets included 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
or soon after the end of 
the year, expenditures 
when goods or services 
have been received and 
payments are due during the year 
or soon thereafter  

Activities the City 
operates similar to 
private businesses: 
the water, gas, and 
sewer system 

• Statement of 
net position 

• Statementof 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
position 

• Statement of 
cash flows 

Accrual 
accounting and 
economic 
resources focus 

AII assets and 
liabilities, both 
financial and 
capital, and short-
term and long-
term 

AIJ revenues and 
expenses during 
year, regardless of 
when cash is 
received or paid 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

Government-wide Statements 

The government-wide statemeuts report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the 
govermnents assets and liabilities. A11 ofthe current years revenues and expenses are accounted for in the 
statement ofactivities regardless ofwhen cash is received or paid. 

These two government-wide statements report the Citys net position how they have changed. Net position 
— the difference between the Citys assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the Citys financial health, 
or financial position. 

• Over time, increases or decreases in the Citys net position arc an indicator ofwhether its flnancial 
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively. 

• To assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such 
as changes in the Citys property tax base and the condition ofthe Citys infrastructure. 

The government-wide financial statements ofthe City are divided into two categories: 

• Governmental activities — the Citys basic services are included here, such as general government, 
public safety, streets and drainage, sanitation, recreation and buildings and grounds, civic center, 
code enforcement, and economic development. Property taxes and sales taxes finance most ofthese 
activities. 

• Business-type activities — the City charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of services it 
provides. The citys water, gas, and sewer system are included here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund flnancial statements provide more detailed information about the Citys most signiflcant funds — 
not the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uscs to keep track ofspecific sources of 
funding and spending for particular purposes. 

The City has two kinds offunds: 

Governmental funds — Most ofthe Citys basic services are included in governmental funds, which 
focus on (1) how cash and other flnancial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and 
out and (2) the ba1ances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the 
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine 
whether there are more or fewer flnancial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance 
the Citys programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus 
ofthe government-wide statements, we provide additional information on the subsequent page, that 
explains the relationship (or differences) between them. 

• Proprietary fund — Services for which the City charges customers a fee is generally reportcd in a 
proprietary fund. The proprietary fund, like the government-wide statements, provide both long 
and short-term flnancial information. 

In fact, the Citys enterprise fund (one type ofproprietary fund) is the same as its business-
type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Net position. The Citys combined net position increased between fiscal years 2022 and 2021 
approximately $6.6 million to approxirnately $86 miilion. (See Table A-2.) 

Table A-2 
Citys Net Position 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Current and other assets 
Capítal assets, net 

Total assets 
Deferred outfiows of resources 

Total assets and deferred 
outllows of resources 

Current ancl other liabilities 
Long-terrn liabilitics 

Total liabilities 
Deferred inflows of resources 

Total liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources 

Net position 
Net investinent in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net position  

2022 2021 2022 2021 

$ 29,993,389 $ 24,651,370 $ 8,502,897 $ 6,763,925 
40, 152,4 12 39,941,930 48,480,734 47,405,8 1 1 
70, 145,801 64,593,300 56,983,63 1 54, 169,736 

5,707,658 7,2 19,060 97 1,369 1,2 10,879 

75,853,459 

4,562, 168 
19,163,041 
23,725,209 

6,133,741 

29,858,950 

39,780,960 
5,581,558 

631,991 
$ 45,994,509 

71,812,360 

1,210,988 
26,765,737 
27,976,725 

1,582,576 

29,559,301 

39,595,036 
4,498,880 

(1,940,857) 
$ 42,253,059 

57,955,000 

1,747,172 
15, 107,024 
16,854, l 96 

1,062,137 

17,916,333 

36,858,96 1 
2,306,550 

873,156 
$ 40,038,667 

55,380,615 

1,511,714 
16,479,063 
17,990,777 

238,008 

18,228,785 

34,809,679 
523,593 

1,818,558 
$ 37,151,830 

Net position of the Citys governmental activities increased 9 percent to approximately $46 million. Net 
position of the Citys business-type activities increased 8 percent to approximately $40 million. 

The nct position for governmental activities increased $3,741,450 in the current year. The net position for 
busincss-type activities increased $2,886,837 in the ctirrent year. 

Changes in net position. The Citys total revenues and transfers increased by approximately $4.9 million 
to $38 million (see Table A-3). Approximately 59 percent of the Citys revenue is derived from property 
and sales tax coilections. Charges for services represent 24 percent ofrevenue. Capital and Operating Grants 
and Contributions represent 10 percent. Licenses and permits represent 4 percent ofrevenue. The remaining 
3 percent represents miscellaneous, non-employer contributions to pension plans, and investment earnings. 

The total cost of all programs and services increased approximately $2 million or 6.8 percent. The Citys 
expenses cover all services performed by its office. 

Governmental Activities 
Revenues and transfers for the Citys governmental activities increased by 10.5 perccnt, and total 
expenses increased 5 percent. 
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$ 2,695,314 $ 2,877,790 $ 6,240,439 $ 5,425,315 
3,802,557 1,849,009 

21,412,024 
1,647, 186 

599,516 

376,587 
(364,4 16) 

(3,415,258) 

18,815,725 
1,596,791 

682, 126 

346,597 
38,138 

(1,998,670) 

951,190 

732,652 

46,240 
(161,656) 
3,415,258 

834,127 

620,192 

42,222 
(1,166) 

1,998,670 

26,753,510 24,207,506 1 1,224, 123 8,9 19,360 

3,295,553 

11,713,938 
3,361,370 
1,240,57 1 
2,1 18,594 

134,475 
365,649 
766,366 
15,544 

23,012,060 

3,195,048 

11,100,780 
3, 166,263 
1,228,022 
1,905,007 

110,614 
343,963 
772,065 
14,569 

21,834,936 

8,337,286 7,516,604 

8,337,286 7,516,604 

$ 3,741,450 $ 2,372,570 $ 2,886,837 $ 1,402,756 

CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS ÐISCUSSION ANÐ ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

Business-type Activities 
Revenues and transfers of the City s business-type activities increased approximately $2.3 million 
or 26 percent and expenses increased by approximately $821,000 or 1 1 percent. 

Tahle A-3 
Changes in Citys Net losition 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

Revenues and transfers 
Program revenues 
Charges for services 
Grants and contributions 

General revenues 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Miscellaneous 
Non-employer contributions to 
pension plan 
Investment earnings 

Contributions/Transfers, net 
Total revenues and 
transfers 

Expenses 
General government 
Operating expenses 
Public safety 
Streets/Water/Wastewater 
Sanitation 
Recreation, Buildings & Grounds 
Civic center 
Code enforcement 
Economic development 
Interest 

Total expenses 

Change in net position 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITYS FUNÐS 

As the City completed the year, its goveimmental funds reported a combined fund balance ofapproximately 
$26 million, an increase of approximately $2 million or 8 percent from last year. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

There was one amendment made in the current year to the general fund budget. General government, Public 
Safety, StreetsfDrainage, Sanitation, Recreation/Bui1ding & Grounds, Civic Center, and Code Enforcement 
expenditures increased, in total, by $2,323,566 to reflect increases in costs ofliving adjustments for salaries 
and benefits. Revenues increased in total by $2,456,000 to reflect an increase of $300,000 in tax revenues 
and $2,079,000 in grant revenues. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

At the end of 2022, the City had invested approximately $87 million in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, vehicles, water and sewer lines, 
improvements, and constmction in progress. (See Table A-4) This amount represents a net increase 
(including additions and deductions) of approximately $ 1.2 million from last year. 

Table A-4 
Citys Capital Assets 
(net ofdepreciation) 

Governmental Activities BLlsiness-Type Activities 
2022 2021 2022 2021 

$ 4,728,563 $ 4,728,563 $ 118,828 $ 118,828 
8,258,0 17 8,508,684 207,412 129,073 

25,294,763 25,095,165 - - 
46,633,396 46,865,095 

1,05,623 1,274,641 154,170 124,422 
815,446 334,877 1,366,928 168,393 

$ 40,152,412 $ 39,941,930 $ 48,480,734 $ 47,405,811 

Land 
Buildings & Equipment 
Improvements 
Lines, meters, & plants 
Vehicles 
Constmction in Progress 
Total 

This years major capital asset additions included: 
• Business-Type Activities lines and meters in the amount of $ 1,609,938 for costs associated with 

the ongoing wastewater improvements and upgrades ofplant. 
• Business-Type Activities new vehicles totaled $69,772 and building improvements totaled 

$109,507. 
• Governmental Activities improvements to builcling and new equipment in the amount of$459,169. 
• Govermnental Activities improvements to parks, bridges, sidewalks, streets and drainage in 

amounts totaling $1,816,037. 
• Govermnental Activities new vehicles totaled $223,717. 
• Constmction in progress for Business-Type Activities totalcd S 1 ,366,928 and Govcrnmcntal 

Activities totaled $8 15,446. 

This years major disposa1s include: 
• Governmental Activities disposals of vehicles totaling $233,426 and buildings/equipment 

tota1ing $97,838. 
• Business-Type Activities had disposals of vehicles totaling $44,604 and buildings/equipment 

totaling $56,922. 



CITY OF GONZALES 

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS 
MAY 31. 2022 

LONG-TERM LIABIL1TLES 

Long-term liabilities consist of: 

Sales Tax Bond - The City has been approved for $15 million in State Revolving Loan Funcls to make 
improvements to the Citys wastewater system. The City has completed making draws against the line of 
credit. Surpluses from the Utility Fund will be used to repay the debt. At the end ofthe current fiscal year, 
the Citys outstanding balance is $9,870,471, maturing in 2035. During the year, the City made a principal 
payment of$773,000. 
Sales Tax Bond - The City has been approved for $2.4 million in State Revolving Loan Funds to make 
improvements to the Citys water infrastructure. The City made its first draw against the line of credit 
during the year. Surpluses from the utility Fund will be used to repay the debt. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, the Citys outstanding balance is $623,484, maturing in 2042. The City has not made a principal 
payment during the year. 
Occupancy Tax Bond - The City has been approved for $4.5 million in taxable hotel occupancy tax bonds 
to financc the acquisition, construction, furnishing and equipping a performing arts, conference, and 
exhibition center. Bond is secured by revenues derived from the levy and collection of a 2% Hotel 
Occupancy tax. At the end ofthe current fisca1 year, the Citys outstanding balance is $88,392, maturing in 
2041. Amounts due are related to bond commission fees. During the year, the City did not make any 
principa1 payments. 
CaDital Leases - At May 31, 2022, the City reported a total capital lease liability in the amount of 
$ 1,957,059. 
Other Post-Emplovinent Benefits - At May 3 1, 2022, the City reported a net OPEB obligation in the arnount 
of $9,606,768. 
Net Pension Liabilitv - At May 31, 2022, the City reported a total NPL obligation in the amount of 
$12,691,989. 
Compcnsatcd Abscnces - At May 3 1, 2022, the City reported a total compensated absences obligation in 
the amount of$595,425. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGET AND RATES 

For fiscal year ending 2023, the City is dependent on sales tax collections for 70% ofits general and capital 
project fund revenues. The Citys Administration has projected a 1O% increase in sa1es taxes for the 
upcoming fiscal year. Expenditures budgeted in the genera1 fund reflect a decrease of3% compared to the 
previous year. Decreases for overtime from hurricane contribute to this decrease. The cost of operation 
within the Gas Department will increase to $1O.44 per MCF in accordance with City Ordinances. The City 
believes that the 5 percent increase in sewer rates and 3 percent increase in water rates will be more than 
enough to cover ongoing repairs to the sewer and water infrastructure. 

CONTACTING THE CITYS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors 
with a general overview ofthe Citys finances and to demonstrate the Citys accountability for the money 
it receives. Ifyou have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Brandon 
Boylan, 120 South lrma Boulevard, Gonzales, LA 70737. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

MAY31,2022 

Governmental Bnsiness-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivabies 
Accrned interest 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Non-depreciable capitai assets 
Capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 
OPEB related 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets an(l ðeferreð outflows ofresources 

LlABILIT1ES 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Accrued expenses 
Cash Bonds 
Unearned revenues 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Customer deposits 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 
Long-term liabilities: 

Other post employment benefit liability 
Compensated absences 
Net pension liability 
Capital lease liability 
Bonds payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Pension related 
OPEB related 

Total deferred infiows of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net invcstinent in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement 
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$ 13,932,170 $ 1,843,529 $ 15,775,699 
9,353,540 3,848,700 13,202,240 
4,729, 107 1,850,836 6,579,943 

6,117 2,702 8,819 

1,972,455 45 1,604 2,424,059 
- 505,526 505,526 

5,544,009 1,485,756 7,029,765 
34,608,403 46,994,978 81,603,381 
70,145,801 56,983,631 127,129,432 

3,802,844 402,399 4,205,243 
1,904,814 568,970 2,473,784 
5,707,658 97 1,369 6,679,027 

$ 75,853,459 $ 57,955,000 $ 133,808,459 

$ 1,891,565 $ 168,793 $ 2,060,358 
77,303 - 77,303 

390,827 1 13,557 504,384 
26,234 - 26,234 

2,029,537 - 2,029,537 

- 448,001 448,001 
209,095 1,016,821 1,225,916 

7,733,289 1,873,479 9,606,768 
529,400 66,025 595,425 

10,752,905 1,939,084 12,691,989 
79,662 1,539,008 1,618,670 

5,392 9,689,428 9,694,820 
23,725,209 16,854,196 40,579,405 

4,537,935 585,467 5,123,402 
1,595,806 476,670 2,072,476 
6,133,741 1,062,137 7,195,878 

39,780,960 36,235,477 76,016,437 
5,581,558 509,129 6,090,687 

63 1,991 3,294,06 1 3,926,052 
45,994,509 40,038,667 86,033,176 

$ 75,853,459 $ 57,955,000 $ 133,808,459 



Fees, Fines, and Capital Operating
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
ACTIVITIES

Governmental:
General government 3,773,937$       1,732,808$       -$                      2,906,680$       865,551$          -$                      865,551$          
Public safety:

Police 6,891,087         167,137            -                        457,627 (6,266,323)        -                        (6,266,323)        
Fire 4,344,467         795,369            -                        5,000                (3,544,098)        -                        (3,544,098)        

Streets/Water/Wastewater 3,361,370         -                        385,546            -                        (2,975,824)        -                        (2,975,824)        
Sanitation 1,240,571         -                        -                        -                        (1,240,571)        -                        (1,240,571)        
Recreation, Buildings & Grounds 2,118,594         -                        15,000              32,704              (2,070,890)        -                        (2,070,890)        
Civic center 134,475            -                        -                        -                        (134,475)           -                        (134,475)           
Code enforcement 365,649            -                        -                        -                        (365,649)           -                        (365,649)           
Economic Development 766,366 -                        -                        -                        (766,366)           -                        (766,366)           
Interest on long-term liabilities 15,544 -                        -                        -                        (15,544)             -                        (15,544)             

Total governmental activities 23,012,060       2,695,314         400,546            3,402,011         (16,514,189)      -                        (16,514,189)      

Business-type:
Utility 8,337,286 6,240,439         -                        -                        -                        (2,096,847)        (2,096,847)        

Total business-type activities 8,337,286         6,240,439         -                        -                        -                        (2,096,847)        (2,096,847)        
Total City of Gonzales 31,349,346$     8,935,753$       400,546$          3,402,011$       (16,514,189)      (2,096,847)        (18,611,036)      

General Revenues:
Taxes 21,412,024 951,190            22,363,214       
Licenses and permits 1,647,186         -                        1,647,186         
Miscellaneous 599,516 732,652 1,332,168         
Transfers, net (3,415,258)        3,415,258 -                        
Non-employer contributions to pension plan 376,587 46,240 422,827            
Investment earnings (losses) (364,416)           (161,656)           (526,072)           

     Total general revenues 20,255,639       4,983,684         25,239,323       

Change in net position 3,741,450         2,886,837         6,628,287         

Net position - beginning 42,253,059 37,151,830       79,404,889       

Net position - ending 45,994,509$     40,038,667$     86,033,176$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Changes in Net Position
Net (Expense) Revenue and

CITY OF GONZALES
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

Program Revenues
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CITY OF GONZALES 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
MAY 31. 2022 

Other Total 
General Capital Projects Governinental Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

$ 5,990,737 $ 4,675,495 $ 3,265,938 $ 13,932,170 
9,353,540 - - 9,353,540 
3,733,777 663,524 331,806 4,729,107 

6,117 - - 6,117 

- - 1,972,455 1,972,455 

$ 19,084,171 $ 5,339,019 $ 5,570,199 $ 29,993,389 

$ 319,077 $ 1,443,941 $ 128,547 $ 1,891,565 
- 77,303 - 77,303 

26,234 - - 26,234 
390,827 - - 390,827 
878,301 1,151,236 - 2,029,537 

1,614,439 2,672,480 128,547 4,415,466 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net of allowance 
Accrued interest 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Cash bonds 
Accrued expenses 
Unearned revenues 

Tota1 liahilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Committed: 

Capital projects 
Restricted 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund halances 

139,906 
2 10,867 

17,1 18,959 

I 7,469,732 

2,666,539 2,666,539 
5,441.652 5,58 1,558 

2 10,867 
17,118,959 

2,66539 5.44 I .652 25,577,923 

Total liabiiitics and ftiiid l)alances I94,17I S 5,339)I9 S 5.570.199 $ 29,993,389 

The accornpanying notcs arc an intcgral part ofthis financial statcrncnt. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNÐS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
MAY31,2022 

Total fund balances - Govemmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position is 
different because: 

Deferred oufflows - pension related 
Deferred oufflows - OPEB related 

Capital assets used in the govermnental activities that are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: 

Cost ofcapital assets at May 31, 2022 91,822,534 
Less: accumulated depreciation as ofMay 31, 2022 (51,670,122) 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the CityTs governmental activities are not due anc 
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as funð liabilities: 

Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows - pension related 
Deferred inflows - OPEB related 
Other post employment benefits 
Capital lease liability 
Bond payable 
Compensated absences 

lotal net position at May 3 1, 2022 - Governmenta1 Activities 

25,577,923 

3,802,844 
1,904,814 

40,152,412 

(10,752,905) 
(4,537,935) 
(1,595,806) 
(7,733,289) 

(205,757) 
(88,392) 

(529,400) 

$ 45,994,509 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMFNTAL FUND TYPES 
YEAR ENDED MAY 3, 2022 

Other Total 
Capital Governmental Govemmental 

General Projects Funds Funds 
REVENUES 

Taxes 
Franchise fees 
Licenses and permits 
Fees, fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 
Wastewater impact fees 
Fire department revenue 
Intergovernmenta1 revenues: 

Federal grants 
State and local grants 

Investment eamings (losses) 
Total revenues 

EXPENÐITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety: 

police 
Fire 

Streets and drainage 
Sanitation 
Recreation, building and grounds 
Civic center 
Code enforcement 
Economic development 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Proceeds from capital lease obligations 
Proceeds from debt 
Transfer in 
Transfer out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in funð lalances 

Funcl Balance, Beginning of Year 
Funð Balance, Enð of Year  

$ 15,666,641 $ 3,804,760 $ 1,940,623 $ 21,412,024 
1,332,121 - - 1,332,121 
1,647,186 - - 1,647,186 

167,137 - - 167,137 
519,516 80,000 - 599,516 

- 400,687 - 400,687 
795,369 - - 795,369 

2,226,921 548,817 - 2,775,738 
626,273 400,546 - 1,026,819 

(370,529) 3,553 2,560 (364,416) 
22,610,635 5,238,363 1,943, 183 29,792,18 1 

4,082,417 238,333 - 4,320,750 

6,815,938 507,515 - 7,323,453 
4,000,834 179,224 - 4,180,058 
1,442,288 2,329,943 - 3,772,231 
1,241,106 - - 1,241,106 
1,684,978 842,251 - 2,527,229 

79,903 - - 79,903 
347,652 10,762 - 358,414 

- - 766,366 766,366 
19,695, 116 4, 108,028 766,366 24,569,5 10 

2,915,519 1,130,335 1,176,817 5,222,671 

- 69,130 - 69,130 
- 88,392 - 88,392 

72,900 137,699 - 210,599 
- (3,488,158) (137,699) (3,625,857) 

72,900 (3, 192,937) (137,699) (3,257,736) 

2,988,419 (2,062,602) 1,039,118 1,964,935 

14,481,3 13 4,729,141 4,402,534 23,6 12,988 
$ 17,469,732 $ 2,666,539 $ 5,441,652 $ 25,577,923 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financia1 statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. 
EXPENDITURES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

MAY31g2022 

Total change in net fund balances - Governmental funds 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities is different because: 

Govemmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the statement 
of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives 
and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital assets: 
Capital outlay capitalized 2,979,493 
Depreciation expense for the year ended May 3 1, 2022 (2,769,0 1 1) 

Capital lease proceeds provide current financial resources to govemmental funds, but 
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of 
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 
liabilities in the statement ofnet position. This is the amount by which payments exceeded 
proceeds. 

1,964,935 

2 10,482 

Proceeds from capital leases (69,130) 
Proceeds from debt (88,392) 
Payments on capital leases 190,888 33,366 

Net effects of change in net pension liability and deferrals 
Net effects of change in OPEB liability and deferrals 
Non-employer contributions to pension plans 
Changes in compensated absences 

Changes in net position of governmental activities 

1,286,432 
(169,370) 
376,587 
39,018 

$ 3,741,450 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
MAY 31. 2022 

Enterprise 
Funð 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and eash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net ofallowance 
Restricted assets - investment 
Restricted assets - cash and cash equiva1ent 
Accrued interesl 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciatior 

Total noncurrent assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 
OPEB related 

Total deferred outflows ofresource 

Total assets and ðeferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Current portion oflong-term liabilities 
Customer deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absence 
Net pension liability 
Net OPEB liability 
Capital lease liability 
Bonds payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 
OPEB related 

Total deferred inflows ofresources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted to debt service 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis financial statement. 

$ 1,843,529 
3,848,700 
1,850,836 

505,526 
451,604 

2,702 
8,502,897 

1,485,756 
46,994,978 
48,480,734 
56,983,63 1 

402,399 
568,970 
971,369 

$ 57,955,000 

$ 168,793 
113,557 

1,016,821 
448,001 

1,747,172 

66,025 
1,939,084 
1,873,479 
1,539,008 
9,689,428 

15,107,024 
16,854,196 

585,467 
476,670 

1,062,137 

36,235,477 
509,129 

3,294,061 
40,038,667 

$ 57,955,000 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES. AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNÐ 
YEAR ENDEÐ MAY 31. 2022 

Enterprise 
Funl 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for service: 

Gas sales 
Sewer service charges 
Water sales 

Miscellaneous 
Contributions from non-employer contributing entities-pension benefit 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Gas department 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 
Water department 
Sewer department 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING LOSS 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment losses 
Sales tax revenue 
Interest on bonds payable 

Net nonoperating revenues 

Loss before transfers and contributions 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Cbanges in iet position 

Total net position - beginning 

Total net position - en1ing 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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$ 2,023,459 
2,459,841 
1,757,139 

732,652 
46,240 

7,019,331 

1,780,545 
1,285,408 
1,912,829 
2,101,077 
1,057,668 
8,137,527 

(1,1 18,196) 

(161,656) 
951,190 

(199,759) 
589,775 

(528,421) 

3,418,158 
(2,900) 

2,886,837 

37,151,830 

$ 40,038,667 



CITY OF GONZALES 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 

Eiiterprlse 
Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provlded by operatlng activitles 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACFIVITIES 
Transfers to other funds 
Transfers from othcr tinds 
Intergovernmental rerenue 

Net cash provlded by noncapital flnancing activitles 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACT1VHES 
Purchases of capital assets 
Payments on long tenn liabilities 
Proceeds from long term liabilities 
lnterest paid 
Transfers from other funds 

Net cash used ln capltal and related flnanclng activltles 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVEST1NG ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from sales and inaturities ofinvestments 
Purchases of investments 
lnvestment losses 

Net cash USe(t in investiiig aetivities 

Net increase in cash anel restricted cash 

Cash an(l restricteel cash - .June 1, 2021 

Casb and restrlcted cash - May 31, 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to ne 

cash provided by operating activities - 
Depreciation and amortization 
Bad debt expense 
Pension expense adjustinent 
OPEB expense adjustment 
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Other assets 
Deferred inflow ofresources 
Deferred outflow ofresources 
Accounts payable 
Customer deposits 
Accrued liabilities 
Compensated absences 

Net cash provided by operatlng activitles 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

19 

$ 6,119,527 
(4,211,156) 
(1,581,520) 

326,851 

(2,900) 
430,406 
951,190 

1,378,696 

(2,987,752) 
(974,359) 
623,484 

(199,759) 
2,987,752 
(550,634) 

976,272 
(1,816,784) 

(161,656) 
(1,002,168) 

152,745 

2,142,388 

$ 2,295,133 

$ (1,118,196) 

1,912,829 
17,720 

(751,679) 
(218,290) 

(762,116) 
(1,319) 

824,129 
239,510 
111,804 

23,488 
57,704 
(8.733) 

$ 326,851 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Poiicies 

The City ofGonzales, Louisiana, (the City) was incorporated April 15, 1922, under the provision of 
the Lawrason Act. The City operates under a Mayor-City Council form ofgovernment. 

The accompanying flnancial statements of the City has been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Pursuant to Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 62, Codijìcation of Accounting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, the City has 
elected to directly incorporate into GASBs authoritative literature and certain pronouncements issued 
by FASB and its predecessors on or before November 30, 1989. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

This report includes all funds which are controlled by, or dependent on the Citys executive and 
legislative branches (the Mayor and the City Council). Control by or dependence on the City was 
determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, authority to issue debt, election or 
appointment ofgoverning body, and other general oversight responsibility. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, certain organizations are not part of the City and are thus excluded 
from the accompanying financial statements. These are the Friends of the Museum, Beautification 
Board, and Committee on Cultural Affairs. 

The financial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, basic Financial 
Statements — and Managements Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, issued 
in June, 1999. 

Related Organizations — The City Council is also responsible for appointing thc mcmbcrs of thc board 
of the Industria1 Development Board of the City of Gonza1es, but thc Citys accountability for this 
organization does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display 
information about the City ofGonzales. These statements include the financial activities ofthe overall 
government, except for flduciary activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental 
and business-type activities of the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed 
in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the Citys govemmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by the programs and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Citys funds. 
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The 
emphasis offund flnancial statements is on major govemmental and enterprise fund, each displayed in 
a separate column. 

The City reports the following major govemmental funds: 

a. General Fund— The General Fund is the general operating fund ofthe City. It is used to account 
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

b. Capital Projects Fund — Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction ofmajor capital facilitìes (other than those flnanced by 
proprietary funds). 

The City reports the following proprietaiy fund: 

a. Enlerprise Fund— This fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises — where the intent of the goveming body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) ofproviding goods and services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) 
where the governing body has decided the periodic determination ofrevenues earned, expenses 
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management 
control, accountability, or other purposes. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. The govemment-wide and proprietary 
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The govemment-
wide and proprietary fund financia1 statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City 
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equa1 value in exchange, include 
property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrua1 basis, revenue from property taxes 
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and 
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

21 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

Measureinent Focus, Basis of Accountiiig (continued) 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modifled accrual basis ofaccounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City considers a11 revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest 
on general long-term debt and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. Proceeds of genera1 long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
flnancing sources. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, grants, and interest are 
considered to be susceptible to accrual. A11 other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the government. 

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. Proprietary funds are reported using the economic financial 
resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. The operating revenues, such as 
charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity ofthe fund. 
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receive and gives up essentially equal values. Non-
operating revenues, such as investment earnings and sales tax revenues, result from nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 

Interfund Activity 

Transfers between funds are not expected to be repaid and are accounted for as other flnancing sources 
(uses). These other financing sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

1) The Citys Mayor and Clerk prepare a proposed budget message and budgct and submit it to 
the City Council prior to the beginning ofeach fiscal year. 

2) A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is ca1led. 

3) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least two weeks after publication ofthe call 
for the hearing. 

4) After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopteð through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement ofthe flsca1 year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5) Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or 
function to another, or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval ofthe City Council. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

6) A11 budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7) The budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Budgeted 
amounts are as originally adopted, or amended from time to time by the City council. Such 
amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations. 

Cash and Cash Eciuivalents — Cash and cash equivalents include investments in high1y liquid debt 
instrurnents with an original maturity of three months or less, excluding amounts whose use is Iimited 
by board designation or those amounts with third-party payers. 

Accounts Receivable — In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned 
at year-end and not yet received. For governmental activities, uncollectible amounts due for receivables 
are recognized as bad debts and directly charged offat the time information becomes available which 
indicates that the particular receivable is not collectible. In governmental fund types, the uncollectible 
amount is charged to the revenue reported. In business-type activities, uncollectible amounts due from 
utility billing receivables are recognized as bad debts through the use of an allowance account or are 
directly charged off at the time information becomes available which indicated that the particular 
receivable is not collectible. Utility accounts in excess of 120 days are deemed uncollectible and 
reserved through the allowance. 

Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. 

Capital Assets — Capital assets, which inc1ude property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and sixnilar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at 
historical cost or estimated cost. Assets acquired prior to july 1, 200 1, consist ofthe road network assets 
that were acquired or that received substantial improvements subsequent to july 1, 1980, and are 
reported at estimated historica1 cost using deflated replacement cost. Donated fixed assets are recorded 
as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The municipality maintains 
a threshold Ieve1 of$5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. The cost ofnormal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Surnmary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

Capital asscts arc dcprcciatcd using thc straight-linc mcthod ovcr thc following cstimatcd uscful livcs: 

Asset Ciass Estimates Useftil Lives 
Buildings and Infrastructure 30-40 
Improvements 15-40 
Vehicles 5- 15 
Equipment 3-40 

Depreciation of fixed assets used by business-type activities is charged as an expense against 
operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Years 
Lines, meters, & plants 15-50 
Buildings & improvements 15-40 
Equipment 4-10 
Vehicles 4-5 

AII fixed assets are stated at historical cost or estiinated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not 
available. Donated flxed assets are stated at their estimated fair value on the date received. 

Interest incurred during construction in the govermnental activities and business-type activities is 
reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of investment earnings on invested loan 
proceeds during the same period. Net interest expense capitalized during the year ended May 3 1, 2022, 
amounted to $0. 

Compcnsatcd Absences — The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund statements consists of unpaid, accumulated annual and vacation leave balances. The 
liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees 
currently eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become 
eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are included. 

Bad Debts — Uncollectible amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers utility receivables are 
expenses when the debt becomes uncollectible, which is not materially different from accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. The City considers any utility receivable 
where service has been disconnected to be uncollectible. ALI utility receivables with service are 
considered collectible. 

Statement of Cash Flows — For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprisc Fund considers 
all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets), with a maturity ofthree months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent assets 
and liabilities at the date the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Government-Wide and Pronrietary Fund Net Position - Government-wide and proprietaiy fund net 
position displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - Consists ofcapital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. 
Restricted net position - Consists ofnet assets with constraints placed on the use either by external 
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or Iaws and regulations of other govermnents, or 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling litigation. 
Unrestricted net position - Consist of all other net assets that do not meet the deflnition of 
restricted or net investment in capital assets. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the governments policy to 
used restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Eciuitv ofFund Financial Statements - Accounting standards require governmental fund balances 
to be rcported in as many as five classifications as listed below: 

Nonspendable - represents amounts that are not expected to be converted to cash because they are 
cithcr not in spendable form or IegaI1y contractua1ly required to be maintained intact. 
Restricted - represents baIances where constraints have been established by parties outside the 
City or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
Committed - represents baIances that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. 
Assined - represents balances that are constrained by the governments intent to be used for 
specific purposes, but are not restricted or committed. 
Unassined - represents balances that have not been assigned to other funds and that have not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to speciflc purposes within the general fund. 

When expenditures are incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted amounts are 
available, the City reduces restricted amounts flrst, followed by unrestricted amounts. When 
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned and unassigned amounts are 
available, the City reduces committed amounts flrst, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts. 
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NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accotintin Policies (continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In additiou to assets, the Statemeut ofNet Position or Ba1auce Sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will uot be 
recognized as an outflow ofresources (expeuditure) until theu. The City has two items that qualify for 
this categoiy; peusiou related and OPEB related deferrals, which are reported in the government-wide 
statemeut. 

In additiou to liabilities, the Statement ofNet Position or Balance Sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows ofresources. This separate fivancia1 element, deferred inflows ofresources, 
represeuts au acquisitiou ofuet positiou that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that time. The City has two items that qualify for this category; 
pensiou and OPEB related deferrals which are reported in the government-wide statemeut. The amounts 
deferred are recognized as an inflow ofresources iu the period that the amounts become available. 

Pension P1an 

The City ofGonzales is a participating employer in multiple cost-sharing, multiple-employer deflned 
bcnefit pensiou plans as described in Note 12. For purposes of measuriug the net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position ofeach ofthe plans, and additions to/deductious 
for the plans fiduciary net positiou have beeu determined ou the same basis as they are reported by the 
plan. For this purpose, benefit paymeuts (includiug refunds ofemployee contributions) are recognized 
wheu due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments have been reported at fair 
va1ue within the plan. 

Reclassification 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consisteucy with the current period presentation. 
These reclassifications had uo effect ou the reported results of operations. 

Transfers Iu and Out 

Advances between fund as which are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as transfers. In those 
cases where repayment is expected, the transfers are accounted for through the various due from and 
due to accounts. 

Due from Other Governments 

The receivable amounts are made up of taxes and fees collected by other governments to be remitted, 
amounts due ou reimbursement grants, and reimbursemeuts for expeuditures from other agencies. No 
reserve for uncollectible is cousidered necessary for these receivables. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operatious transactious occur betweeu individual funds. These receivables and 
payables are classified as due to or due from other funds on the fund financial statement ba1ance 
sheet. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Cash and Cash Eauivaients 

A summary ofdeposits followcd: 
Cash: Under state Iaw, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state or the laws of the United States. The City may 
invest in certificates ofdeposit ofany bank domiciled or having a branch office in the state ofLouisiana. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in an event ofbank failure, the Citys deposits may not be returned 
to it. The government does not have deposit policy for custodial risk. As ofMay 3 1, 2022, these deposits 
were completely collateralized ancl/or insured. 

Cash Equivalents: The City has $3,647,75 1 invested in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), 
a loca1 government investment pooi. LÄMP is administered by LAMIP, Inc., a nonprofit corporation 
organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local governments having contracted to 
participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pooi of assets. The primary objective of LAMP 
is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality 
investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LA — R.S. 33:2955. 

GASB Statement No. 40 Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure, requires disclosure of credit risk, 
custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and forcign currency risk for all 
pubiic entity investments. 

LAMP is an investment pooi that, to the extent practical, invest in a manner consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 79. The following facts are relevant for investment pools. 

• Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAAm by Standard & Poors 
• Custodia1 credit risk: LAMP participants investments in the pooi are evidenced by shares of 

the pooi. Investments in poois should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physica1 or book-entry form. The public entitys investment 
is with the pooi, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required. 

• Concentration of credit risk: Pooied investments are exciuded from the 5 percent disciosure 
requirement. 

• Interest rate risk: LAÌv1P is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access 
to their account balances. LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disciosure using the weighted 
average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM ofLÄMP assets is restricted to not more than 90 
days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days or 762 days for U.S. 
Government floating/variable rate investments. 

• Foreign currency risk: Not applicable 

The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value. The fair value is determincd on a wcckly basis by 
LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pooi is the samc as thc nct asset value 
of the pooi shares. 

LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight ofthe state treasurer and thc board ofdirectors. LAMP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

3. Canital Assets 

Capital assets and depreciation activity as ofand for the year ended May 31, 2022, are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Buildings 
Infrastructure & Construction 

Land Eguipment Improvements Vehicles ln Progress Total 
Cost ofCapital 

Assets 
May3l,2021 

Additions 
Deletions 
Costs ofCapital 

Assets 
May 31, 2022 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
May31,2021 

Additions 
Deletions 
Accumulated 

depreciation 
May 31, 2022 

Capital assets, 
net of 
accumulated 
depreciation 
May 31, 2022  

$ 4,728,563 $ 19,587,250 $ 58,699,050 $ 5,824,565 $ 334,877 $ 89,174,305 
- 459,169 1,816,038 223,717 1,447,167 3,946,091 
- (97,838) - (233,426) (966,598) (1,297,862) 

4,728,563 19,948,581 60,515,088 5,814,856 815,446 91,822,534 

- 11,078,566 33,603,885 4,549,924 - 49,232,375 
- 709,836 1,616,440 442,735 - 2,769,011 
- (97,838) - (233,426) - (331,264) 

- 1 1,690,564 35,220,325 4,759,233 - 5 1,670, 122 

$ 4,728,563 $ 8,25.Øl7 S 25294.76 1O623 S 15,446 $ 40,152,412 

For the year ended May 3 1, 2022, depreciation expense of $2,769,O1 1 was charged to the following govemmental functions: 

Code Enforcement 
Civic Center 
Streets and Sanitation 
Fire 
General 
Police 
Recreation 

$ 8,271 
54,572 

241,004 
1,254,660 

443,643 
331,217 
435,644 

$ 2,769,011 
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3. Canital Assets (continued) 

Business-Type Activities: 
Buildings, 

Improveinents Lines, Meters, 
Land & Eguipment and plants 

Cost of Capital 
Assets 
May 31, 2021 

Additions 
Deletions 
Costs of Capital 

Assets 
May 31, 2022 

Construction 
Vchicics In Progrcss Total 

$ 118,828 $ 817,488 $ 72,433,319 $ 381,628 $ 168,393 $ 73,919,656 
- 109,507 1,609,938 69,772 2,428,932 4,218,149 
- (56,922) - (44,604) (1,230,397) (1,331,923) 

1 18,828 870,073 74,043,257 406,796 1,366,928 76,805,882 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
May 31, 2021 

Additions 
Deletions 
Accumulated 

depreciation 
May 31, 2022 

- 688,415 25,568,224 257,206 
- 31,168 1,841,637 40,024 
- (56,922) - (44,604) 

- 662,661 27,409,861 252,626 

- 26,513,845 
- 1,912,829 

(101,526) 

- 28,325,148 

Capital assets, 
net of 
accumulated 
deprecíation 
May31, 2022 S l 18,82g S 207.412 S 46,633.396 S I54.I7() $ I,366,92g $ 48,480,734 

For the year ended May 3 1, 2022, dcprcciation expcnse was S 1.9 12,829. 

Capitai Leases 

The City has acquired vehicles and utility equipment under capital lease obligations. The lease payrnents relating to the 
vehicles and utility equipment have been capitalized and included in vehicles on the accornpanying governmental aciivities 
financial statements and business-type activitíes financial statements. The leased vehicles have a cost of $768,280 and 
accumulated amortization of $360,893, which is included with accumulated depreciation. and has been recorded in the 
govemmental activities. Ainortization expense, which is included with depreciation expense, recognized on the leases as of 
May 31, 2022 was $ 146,743 in the governmental activities. The leased utility equipinent has a cost of $2,324,796 and 
accumulated amortization of $206,649 which is included with depreciation, and has been recorded in the business-type 
activities. Amortization expense, which is included with depreciation expense, recognized on the lease as of May 3 1, 2022 
was S77,493 in the business-type activities. 
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4. Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments 

Other 
General Capital Govermnental 

Funð Projects Fund Funds Uti1ity Fund 

Receivables: 
Accounts 

Unbilled accounts 
Other receivables 
Grants receivables 
Due from other 
governments 

Gross receivables 
Less: allowance for 
uncollectible 
Total receivables, net 
of allowance 

5. Investments  

- $ - $ - $ 663,104 
- - - 520,504 

394,776 - - - 
892,837 - - - 

2,488,214 663,524 331,806 789,365 

3,775,827 663,524 33 1,806 1,972,973 

(42,050) - - (122,137) 

$ 3,733,777 $ 663,524 $ 331,806 $ 1,850,836 

State law authorizes the City to invest in U.s. Treasury obligations, obligations guaranteed by federal 
agencies, U.S. governnrent instrumentalities which are federally sponsoreð, obligations of the State of 
Louisiana and other States, and certificates of deposit obligations and other investrnents allowed by law. 

As of May 3 1, 2022, the City had the following investments and maturities: 

Investment Type Fair Va1ue Less Than 1 1-5 Over 5 years 
General Fund 
U.S. Agencies $ 2,722,739 $ - $ 2,192,535 $ 530,204 
U.S. Treasuries 4,314,275 1,385,960 2,928,315 - 
MunicipalBonds 1,813,988 - 1,813,988 - 
Commercial Paper 502,538 - 502,538 - 
Total General Fund 
Investments $ 9,353,540 $ 1,385,960 $ 7,437,376 $ 530,204 

Enterprise Fund 
U.S. Agencies 
U.S. Treasuries 
Total Enterprise 
Fund Investments 

Total Investments  

$ 2,515,170 $ 486,350 $ 2,028,820 $ - 
1,839,056 137,435 1,701,621 - 

$ 4,354,226 $ 623,785 $ 3,730,441 $ - 

$ 13,707,766 $ 2,009,745 $ 11,167,817 $ 530,204 
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5. Investments (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Citys investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a mcans ofrnanaging its cxposurc to 
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk 

State law limits investments in securities issued, or backed by the United States Treasury obligations, U.S. 
Government instmmentalities, which are federally sponsored, and other political subdivisions. The Citys 
investment policy does not further limit its investment choices. As ofMay 3 l, 2022, the Citys investments 
in U.S. Agencies were rated AA+ by S&Ps Investors Service and Aaa by Moodys Investor Services. The 
Citys investments in U.S. Treasuries were rated Aaa by Moodys Investors Services. The Citys 
investments in Municipal Bonds were rated AA+, AA, and AA- by S&Ps Investors Services and rated 
Aa2 and Aa3 by Moodys Investors Services. The Citys investments in Commercial Paper were rated 
AAA, AA+, and AA- by S&Ps Investors Services. A portion ofthe Citys investments in U.S. Agencies 
and U.S. Treasuries were unrated. These investments made up 24% of U.S. Agencies and 55% of U.S. 
Treasuries. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The City places no liinit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent ofthe 
Citys investments are in US Treasuiy, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp, Federal National Mortgage 
Assoc, Federal Home Loan Bank, and Municipal Bonds. These investments are 45%, 1 1%, 13%, 10%, 
and 13%, respectively ofthe Citys total investments. 

6. Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes attach an enforceable lien on property ofJanuary 1 ofeach year. Taxes are levied by the 
City in September or October, and are actually billed to the taxpayers in November. Billed taxes become 
delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are budgeted in the year 
billed. 

The Ascension Parish Sheriffbills and collects property taxes using the assessed values determined by the 
tax assessor of Ascension Parish. The Ascension Parish Sheriff remits the taxes to the City. 

For the year ended May 3 1, 2022 taxes of 8.55 mills were levied on property with taxable assessed 
valuations totaling $ 162, 162,360 and were dedicated as follows: 

General corporate purposes 5.28 mills 
Fire department 3.27 mills 
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6. Ad Valorem Taxes (continued) 

îotal taxes levied were $ 1,398,792. Property tax millage rates are adopted in the calendar year in which 
the taxes are levied and recorded. A11 taxes are due and collectible when the assessment rolls are f1ed on 
or before December 3 1 of the current year, and become delinquent thereafter. 

7. Transfers and Contributions to/from Other Funds 

Transfers and contributions to/from Othcr Funds at May 3 1, 2022 consist of the followiiig: 

General Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Other Governmental Funds 
Enterprise Fund 

Transfers and 
Contributions In 

$ 72,900 
137,699 

3,418,158 
$ 3,628,757 

Transfcrs and 
Contributions Out 

$ 
3,488,158 

137,699 
2,900 

$ 3,628,757 

Transfers and contributions to and from the different funds are to providc supplcmcntal funds for fund 
operations. 

8. Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets, which consist of cash and cash equivalents and investments at May 3 1, 2022 were 
applicable to the following: 

Customer Deposits 
Cash equivalents-Money Market 
Investments 
îotal restricted assets 

Entcrprisc Fund 
$ 448,001 

3,603 
505,526 

$ 957,130 

Other 
Government 

Funds 
$ 

175,034 
1,797,42 1 

$ 1,972,455 
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9. Chanes in Lon-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary oflong-term liabilities transactions ofthe City ofGonzales for the year ended 
May 31, 2022: 

Due 
Balance at Within 

May 3 1, 2022 One Year 
Governmental activities: 
Compensated absences 
Capital lease liability 
Other post-employment 
benefits 

Net pension liability 
Bond payable 

Total 

Business-type activities: 
Compensated absences 
Capital lease liability 
Other post-employment 
benefits 

Net pension liability 
Bonds payable 

Tota1 

Baiancc at 
Junc 1,2021 

$ 568,418 
327,515 

8,464,084 
17,578,326 

$ 26,938,343 

$ 74,758 
1,952,660 

2,09 1,769 
2,690,763 

10,643,472 
$ 17,453,422  

Additions 

$ 59,408 
69,130 

619,713 

88,392 
S 836,643 

$ 6,188 

185,109 

623,484 
$ 814,781  

Rcductions 

$ (98,426) 
(190,888) 

(1,35050) 
(6,825,421) 

$ (8,465,243) 

$ (14,921) 
(201,359) 

(403,399) 
(751,679) 
(773,000) 

$ (2,144,358)  

$ 529,400 
205,757 

7,733,289 
10,752,905 

88,392 
$ 19,309,743 

$ 66,025 
1,751,301 

1,873,479 
1,939,084 

10,493,956 
$ 16,123,845  

$ 
126,095 

83,000 
$ 209,095 

$ 
212,293 

804,528 
$1,016,821 

Bonds payable at May 3 1, 2022, is comprised of the following individual issue: 

Utility ob1iation bonds: 
$ 15, 170,000 Public Improvement Sa1es Tax Bonds dated September 22, 20 14, 
due in axinual installments of $765,000 to $865,000 through March 1, 2035, 
interest at O.95%, secured by collection ofsa1es taxes. 

$2,400,000 Taxable Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2022 dated May 24, 2022, 
Due in annual installments of$24,000 to $39,000 through March 1, 2042, 
interest at 1.95%, secured by collection of sales taxes. 

Occuoancv tax bond: 
$4,500,000 Taxable Hotel Occupancy Tax Bond, Series 202 1 dated April 1, 202 1, 
Due in annual installments of$83,000 to $332,000 through May 1, 2041, 
Interest at 3.88%, secured by collection ofoccupancy taxes. 

Total bond payables 

$ 9,870,472 

623,484 

88,392 

$1O,582,347 
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$ 83,000 $ 3,220 
5,392 209 

$ 134,117 
65,155 
18,281 

217,553 
(11,796) 

$ 205,757 

$ 300,004 
300,004 
300,005 
300,005 
300,005 
600,007 

2, 100,030 
(348,729) 

$ 1,751,301 

CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

9. Chanes in Lona-Terrn Liabilities (continued) 

The annual rcquircmcnts to arnortizc dcbts outstanding as ofMay 31, 2022, are as follows: 
Busiiiess-Type Activities Government Activities 

Years ending May Principal Interest Principal Interest 
31 ______________ ______________ ______________ ____________ 

2023 $ 804,528 $ 105,450 
2024 813,132 97,550 
2025 820,747 89,561 
2026 829,379 81,495 
2027 838,024 73,339 

2028-2032 4,3 15,383 232,335 
2033-2037 1,887,563 61,776 
2038-2042 185,200 7,398 

$10,493,956 $ 748,903 $ 88,392 $ 3,429 

Under the terms ofthe bonds, the City is required to establish a Bond Reserve and Sinking fund. As of May 
3 1, 2022, the City is in compliance with these requirernents. 

The following is a sniniry of future minimum lease payments under the capital leases and the present 
value of the net minimum lease payments as of May 31, 2022. 

Governmentai Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Year ending May 31 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028-2032 
Future minimum lease payments 
Less: Amount representing interest 
Present value of net minimum payments 

10. Sales and Use and Occupancy Tax 

The City has the following sales and use and occupancy taxes in existence as ofMay 3 1, 2022: 

On September 10, 1966, a 1 percent salcs tax was passed to be used for streets, sidewalks, drainage, garbage, 
utilities, parks and recreation, fire departrncnt, and acquisition and maintenance ofpublic buildings including 
City Ha11 and Civic Center. 

On April 1, 1989, a y2 percent sales tax was passed to be used for sewer, water, drainage, streets, and gas. 
This tax is pledged to the payrnent of the Public Irnprovement Sales Tax Bonds dated March 1, 2014. On 
September 22, 2014, the City adopted a First Supplemental Bond Ordinance which extends the collection of 
the y2 percent sales tax for the purpose of acquiring, construction and installment of improvements, 
extensions and replacements to the Citys wastewater treatment and disposal system. On April 13, 2020, the 
City adopted a Second Supplementa1 Bond Ordinance authorizing the issuance ofbonds which extends the 
collection of the y2 percent sales tax for the purpose ofpaying costs of acquiring and constructing additions 
and improvements to the Citys drinking water system and paying costs ofissuance. This tax is set to expire 
upon the retirement of any bonds issued payable. 
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10. Sales and Use anð Occupancy Tax (continued) 

On July 1, 2001, an additional /2 percent sales tax was passed to be used for fire, police, and sanitation. 

On May 16, 2005, proceeds from the 1% sales and use tax authorized on September 10, 1966 and the Y2 

percent sales and use authorized on April 1, 1989 collected within the Gonzales Economic Development 
District No. 1 were dedicated to the Industria1 Development Board ofthe City ofGonzales, Louisiana, Inc. to 
promote economic development. 

On June 1, 2012, an additional 1 % sales and use tax was passed to be used for funding economic development 
projects selected by the Tanger Ma11 Economic Development District. This tax is only assessed in the Tanger 
Ma11 Economic Development District only. The tax is set to expire on May 31, 2032. 

On May 29, 20 18 an ordinance was adopted to authorize the execution of a cooperative endeavor agreement 
by and among the City of Gonzales (City), Conway Economic Development District of the City of Gonzales 
(EDD) and Conway Development LLC (Company) relating to the collection, use and expenditure of a 1 % 
sales and use tax and a 1% hotel occupancy tax (EDD Tax) to be levied in the district. This tax is dedicated 
to the district to reimburse the Company for Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure improvements. 

On December 8, 20 18, a hotel occupancy tax of two percent was passed to be used for the purpose of 
financing, construction, maintenance and operation of an event and conference center for the City. The tax is 
effective April 1, 2019 for perpetuity. 

11. Deferreð Compensation Plan 

The City participates in the State of Louisiana Deferred Compensation Plan, (an IRC 457 deferred 
compensation plan). The plan covers all full-time employees. The City does not match employee 
contributions. 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans 

The City of Gonzales is a participating employer in three cost-sharing defmed multiple employer defined 
benefit pension plans that include the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), the 
Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (MPERS) and the Louisiana State Employees Retirement 
System (LASERS). Article X, Section 29 (F) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions of the State-wide plans to the State Legislature. Each system is 
administered by a separate board of trustees. 

Each of the State-wide Systems issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the system. These reports may be obtained by 
writing, calling or downloading the reports as follows: 
MERS: MPERS: LASERS: 
7937 Office Park Blvd. 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70809 
(225) 925-4810 
www.mersla.com 

7722 Office Park Blvd. 
Suite 200 
Baton Rouge, LA 70809 
(225) 929-7411 
www.lampers.com 

P.O. Box44213 
Baton Rouge, LA 
70804-4213 
(225) 922-6000 
www.lasersonline.org 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

The City iinplemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Statement 71 on Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an Amendment ofGASB 68. These standards require the City the 
record its proportional share of each of the pension plans Net Pension Liability and report the following 
disclosures: 

P1an Descriptions: 
Municipai Empioyees Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MERS) 

The Municipal Employees Retirement System ofLouisiana (MERS) is the administrator ofa cost sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. The System was originally established by Act 356 ofthe 
1954 regular session ofthe Legislature of the State of Louisiana. The System provides retirement benefits 
to employees of all incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own 
retirement system and which elect to become members of the System. For the year ended June 30, 2020, 
there were 88 contributing municipalities in P1an A and 68 in P1an B. The City ofGonzales is a participant 
in Plan A only. 

The following is a description of the plan and its bcnefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only. 

Membership is mandatory as a condition ofemployment beginning on the date employed ifthe employee 
is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid jointly by a 
participating employer and the parish are not eligible for membership in the System with exceptions as 
outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of P1an A who was hired before January 1, 2013 can retire providing the member meets one 
ofthe following criteria: 

1. Any age with twenty-five (25) or more years ofcreditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten (10) years creditable service. 
3. Any age with five (5) years ofcreditable service eligible for disability benefits. 
4. Survivors benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death ofmember. 
5. Any age with 20 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service with an actuarially 

reduced early benefit. 

Eligibility for Retirement for P1an A members hired on or after January 1, 2013 is as follows: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) or more years ofcreditable service 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) or more years of creditable service 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) or more years of creditable service 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years ofcreditable service, exclusive ofmilitary service and unused 

side leave. However, any member retiring under this subsection shall have their benefit actuarially 
reduced from the earliest age of which the member would be entitles to a vested deferred benefit 
under any provision ofthis section, ifthe member had continued service to the age 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Municinai EmD1ovees Retirement Svstem of Louisiana (MERS) (continued) 

Generally, the monthly amotint of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist of an 
amount equal to three percent ofthe members monthly average final compensation multiplied by his years 
ofcreditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited 
to specified amounts. 

Upon death of any member of P1an A with five (5) or more years of creditable service, not eligible for 
retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse anð/or minor children as outlined in the 
statutes. Any member of P1an A, who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalfof the surviving 
spouse on the date ofdeath. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu of 
any other survivor benefits. 

ln lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of P1an A 
who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 
three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are 
payable by employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be payable, had the 
person elected to cease employment and received a service retirement a1lowance, are paid into the DROP 
Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation. Interest earnings are based 
upon the actual rate ofreturn on the investments identifled as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no 
cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until employment which make them eligible to become 
members of the System has been terminated for at least one full year. Upon termination of employment 
prior to or at the end of a specified period of participation, a participant in the Drop may receive, at his 
option, a lump sum from the account equal to the payment if approved by the board of tmstees. If a 
participant dies during participation in the DROP, a Iump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be 
paid to his named beneficiary, or if none, to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of the 
three years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership 
in the System. 

For P1an A, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit ifhe has at least five years 
of creditable service, is not eligible for norma1 retirement and has been officially certified as disabled by 
the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan A shall be 
paid a disability benefit equa1 to the lesser of forty-five percent ofhis final average compensation or three 
percent ofhis flnal average compensation multiplied by his years ofcreditable service whichever is greater 
or an amount equal to three percent of the members flnal average compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service projected to his earliest normal retirement age. 

Municipal Po!ice Emplovees Retirement Svstem (MPERS) 

The Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (MPERS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan. Membership in the System is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed 
by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, empowered to make arrests, 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. 
The System provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Municinal Police EmnJovees Retirernent Svstem (MPERS) (continucd 

The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to 
be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms 
and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit 
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 — 11:2233. 

The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. 

Membership prior to January l, 20 13: A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a 
member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable 
service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduced benefit. Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed l 00% of final salary. Upon the death 
of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and minor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from forty to sixty percent of 
the members average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age 
eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent ofthe members average flnal compensation or $200.0O per 
month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 2013: Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under 
the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been• a member of 
the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 
55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been 
a member ofthe System and has 30 years ofcreditable service at any age, 25 years ofcreditable service at 
age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early 
retirement after he has been a member ofthe System for 20 years ofcreditable service at any age, with an 
actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the 
benefit rates are three percent and two and a half percent, respectively, of average final compensation 
(average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salaiy. Upon death of 
an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and minor 
children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from twenty-five to fifty-five 
percent ofthe members average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, each child under 
age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. 
If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiaiy will receive a refund of employee 
contributions only. 
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12. Defiiìed Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement Svstem (MPERS) (continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan: A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirement option 
plan (DROP) when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the members sub plan participation. Upon 
filing the application for the program, the employees active membership in the System is terminated. At 
the entry date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited 
into the DROP account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant 
at date ofapplication. The duration ofparticipation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. Ifemployment 
is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or 
a true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall 
resume and upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement beneflt based on the additional 
service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest 
subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the 
percentage rate ofreturn ofthe Systems investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis 
but will never lose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an irrevocable 
election is made to earn interest based on the Systems investment portfolio return or a money market 
investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. Ifthe member 
elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a government money market account. 

Initial Benefit Option P1an: In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish an Initial 
Beneflt Option program. Initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular 
retirement and have not participated in DROP. The IDitia1 Benefit Option program provides both a one-
time single sum payment ofup to 36 months ofregular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly 
retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP. 

Lotiisiana State Emplovees Retirement Svstem (LASERS) 

The Louisiana State Employees Retirement System (LASERS) is the achninistrator of a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer deflned benefit pension plan established by Section 40 1 of Title 1 1 of the Louisiana 
Revised Statutes (La. R.S. l 1:40 l) to provide retirement a1lowances and other beneflts to eligible state 
officers, employees, and their beneficiaries. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information purposes 
only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 
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1 2. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Louisiana State Empioyees Retirement Svstem (LASERS) (continued) 

Eligibilitv Reguirements 

AII state employees, except those specifically excluded by statute, become members of the Systems 
Defined Benefit Plan (DBP) as a condition ofemployment, unless they elect to continue as a contributing 
member in any other retirement system for which they remain eligible for membership. Certain elected 
officials and officials appointed by the Governor may, at their option, become members ofLASERS. Also, 
qualifying unclassified state employees may have made an irrevocable election to participate in the 
øptional Retirement Plan (ORP) between July 12, 1999 and December 7, 2007, when the plan closed. 

Retirement 

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with full benefits are 
stablished by statute, and vary depending on the member to retire with full benefits are established by 
statute, and vaiy depending on the members hire date, employer, and job classification. The majority of 
our rank and file members may either retire with full benefits at any age upon completing 30 years of 
creditable service and at age 60 upon completing ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. 
Additiona1ly, members may choose to retire with 20 years ofservice at any age, with an actuarially reduced 
benefit. The basic annual retirement benefit for members is equa1 to 2.5% to 3.5% ofaverage compensation 
multiplied by the number ofyears ofcredible service. 

Average compensation is defined as the members average annual earned compensation for the highest 36 
consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to Ju1y 1, 2006. For members hired July 
l, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the members average annual earned compensation for 
the highest 60 consecutive months ofemployment. The maximum annual retirement benefit cannot exceed 
the lesser of 100% ofaverage compensation or a certain specified dollar amount ofactuarially determined 
monetaiy lirnits, which vary depending upon the members age at retirement. Judges, court officers, and 
certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal to 1.0% of average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in their respective capacity. As an 
alternative to the basic retirement benefits, a member may elect to receive their retirement throughout their 
life, with certain benefits being paid to their designated beneficiary after their death. 
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12. Defined Beiìefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Louisiana State Einplovees Retirement System (LASERS (continued) 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1, 201 1. This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, and 
judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were formally eligible to 
participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and judges are 
eligible to retire at age 60 after five years ofcreditable service and, mayalso retire at any age, with reduced 
benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire with twelve 
years of creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or with a reduced benefit 
after 20 years ofcreditable service. Average compensation will be based on the members average annual 
earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment for all three new plans. 
Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, 
hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual rate, andjudges a 3.5% accrua1 rate. The extra 1.0% accrua1 rate for 
each year ofservice for court officers, the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants 
at arms, or Senate secretaly, employed aRer January l, 201 1, who are hazardous duty employees have the 
option to transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attaining minimum retirement age, but after completing certain 
minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the minimum 
scrvice retirement age, and does not withdraw thcir accumulated contributions. The minimum service 
rcquirement for benefits varies depending upon thc mcmbers employer and service classification but 
gcncrally is ten years of service. 

Deferred Benefits 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option P1an (DROP). When 
a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they continue to 
work and draw their salary for a period ofup to three years. The election is irrevocable once participation 
begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been paid to each 
retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January 1, 2004, interest at a rate 
ofone-halfpercent less than the Systems rea1ized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero) will be 
credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose among available 
alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP account. Members who 
enter DROP on or after January l, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS Self-Directed P1an (SDP) 
which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows DROP participants to choose from a 
menu of investment options for the a1location of their DROP ba1ances. Participants may diversify their 
investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with different holdings, management 
styles, and risk factors. 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Louisiana State Empioyees Retirement Svstem (LASERS) (continued) 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at the time 
ofretirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months ofbenefits, with an actuarial 
reduction oftheir future benefits. For members who selected the IBO option prior to January 1, 2004, such 
amountmay be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account eaming interest at a rate ofone-halfpercent less 
than the Systems realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who select the 
IBO on or after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described. 

Disability Benefits 

AII members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may receive a maximum 
disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without reduction by reason of 
age. 

Upon reaching age 60, the disability retiree may receive a rcgular rctircmcnt bcncfit by making application 
to the Board ofTrustees. 

For injuries sustained in the line ofduty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan 
will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of final average compensation. 

Survivors Benefit 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased members compensation and 
their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in state service at the time ofdeath must 
have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned immediately prior to 
death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when eamed in order for a 
benefit to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried child until age 
18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned minimum service credit 
requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid for life 
to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

Funding Poiicy 

Article X, Section 29 (E) (2) (a) ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the Legislature the authority 
to determine employee contributions. Employer contributions are actuarially determined using statutorily 
established methods on an annual basis and are constitutionally required to cover the employers portion 
of the normal cost and provide for the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Employer 
contributions are adopted by the Legislature annually upon recommendation of the Public Retirement 
Systems Actuarial Committee (PRSAC). 
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Contributions to the plans are required and determined by State statute (which may be amended) and are 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll. The contribution rates in effect for the year ended May 31, 
2022, for the City and covered employees were as follows: 

City Ernployees 
29.50% 1().()0% Municipal Employees Retirement System — P1an A 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
AII employees hired prior to 01/01/2013 and all 

hazardous duty employees hired after 01/01/2013 
Non-hazardous duty hired after 01/01/2013 
Employees receiving compensation below poverty 
Guidelines ofUS Department ofHea1th 

Louisiana State Employees Retirement System - 
Judges hired prior to 0 1/0 1/201 ¡ 

29.75% 10.00% 
29.75% 8.00% 

32.25% 7.50% 

43.00% 13.00% 

The contributions made to the Systems for the past three years ending on May 31, werc as follows: 

Municipal Employees Retirement 
System: P1an A 

Municipal Police Employees 
Retirement System 

Louisiana State Employees 
Retirement System  

2022 2021 2020 

$ 1,536,405 $ 1,475,691 $ 1,364,968 

$ 959,198 $ 1,036,911 $ 909,915 

$ 3,061 $ 3,076 $ 2,965 

$ 2,498,664 $ 2,515,678 $ 2,277,848 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Otitflows of Resources and Deferre(I lnfiows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The following schedule lists the Citys proportionate share ofthe Net Pension Liability allocated by each 
of the pension plans based on the June 30, 202 1 measurement date. The City uses this measurement to 
record its Net Pension Liability and associated amounts as of May 31, 2022 in accordance with GASB 
Statement 68. The schedule includes the proportionate share a1location rate used at June 30, 2021 a1ong 
with the change compared to the June 30, 2020 rate. The Citys proportion of the Net Pension Liability 
was based on a projection ofthe Citys long-term share ofcontributions to the pension p1an re1ative to the 
projected contributions ofa1l participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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Increase 
Net Pension (Decrease) to 
Liability at Rate at June 30, 2020 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 Rate 
Governmental Activities: 
Municipal Employees Retirement 
System ofLouisiana: 

Plan A 
Municipal Police Employees 

Retirement System 
Louisiana State Employees 
Retirement System 

$ 5,242,707 2.581982% -0.01 1229% 

5,490,053 1.029923% 0.053215% 

20,145 0.00037% 0.000000% 
$ 10,752,905 

Business-type Activities: 
Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

Plan A $ 1,939,084 2.581982% -0.01 1229% 

The following schedule lists each pension plans rccognizcd pension expense (benefit) ofthe City for the 
year ended May 31, 2022: 

Pension Expense 
(Benefit) 

Municipal Employees Retirement 
System of Louisiana: 

P1anA 
Municipal Police Employees 
Retirement System 

Louisiana State Employees 
Retirement System 

$ (717,338) 

(230,160) 

(1,392) 
$ (948,890) 

At May 3 1, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Change of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share ofcontributions 
Differences between allocated and actual contributions 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 2,608 
870,938 

833,033 

2,498,664 
$ 4,205,243 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ (255,900) 
(156,608) 

(4,586,900) 

(72,181) 
(51,813) 

$ (5,123,402) 
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12. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (continued) 

Summary totals of deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources by pension plan: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources ofResources 

Municipal Employees Retirement 
System ofLouisiana: Plan A 
Municipal Police Employees 
Retirement System 
Louisiana State Employees Retirement 
System 

$ 1,829,088 (2, 168,398) 

2,372,581 (2,950,282) 

3,574 (4,722) 
$ 4,205,243 $ (5,123,402) 

The following table lists the Citys contributions to each retirement system that is reported as deferred 
outflow of resources related to pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period ofJune 
30, 202 1 which will be recognized as a reduction in Net Pension Liability in the year ended May 3 1, 2022. 
The following schedule list the pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement period for each 
pension plan: 

Subsequent 
Contributions 

Municipal Employees Retirement System ofLouisiana: 
P1anA 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
Louisiana State Employees Retirement System 

$ 1,536,405 
959,198 

3,061 
$ 2,498,664 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year MERS 
2022 $ (256,315) 
2023 (390,481) 
2024 (531,309) 
2025 (697,611) 

$ (1,875,715)  

MPERS 
$ (114,770) 

(148,143) 
(380,505) 
(893,481) 

$ (1,536,899)  

LASERS 
$ (304) 

(728) 
(1,073) 
(2, 103) 

$ (4,209) 

Tota1 
$ (371,389) 

(539,352) 
(9 12,888) 

(1,593,195) 
$ (3,416,823) 
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1 2. Defined Benefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Actuariai Assumptions 
A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability for 
each pension plan as of June 30, 202 1 are as foliows: 

aluation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Expected Remaìning 
Service Lives 

lnvestment Rate of 
Return 

Inflation Rate 

MERS 
June 30, 2021 

Entiy Age Normal Cost 

3 years-Plan A 

6.85% net ofpension 
plan investment 

expense, including 
inflation 
2.50% 

MPERS 
June 30, 2021 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

6.75% net of investment 
expenses 

2.50% 

LASERS 
June 30, 2021 

Entiy Age Normal 

2 years 

7.40% per annum, net of 
investment expense 

2.30% 

Mortality PubG-2010(B) Healthy 
Retiree Table set equal 
to 120% for males and 
females, each adjusted 
using their respective 
male and fema1e 
MP2O 18 scales. PubG-

 

20 10(B) Employee 
Table set equal to 120% 
for maies and females, 
each adjusted using their 
respective male and 
female MP2OI 8 sca1es. 
PubNS-2010(B) 
Disabled Retiree table 
set equal to 120% for 
males and fema1es with 
the fu11 generational 
MP2018 scale. 

Termìnation, 
Dìsabìlity, and 
Retirement  

Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plan Mortality Table for Safety 
Below-Median Hea1thy 
Retirees multiplied by 1 15% 
for ma1es and 125% for 
females, each with ftill 
generationa1 projection using 
the MP2019 sca1e was used. 
Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for 
Safety Disable Retirees 
multiplied by 105% for ma1es 
and 1 15% for fema1es, each 
with full generationa1 
projection using the MP2019 
scale was used. Pub-2010 
Public Retirement Plans 
Morta1ity Table for Safety 
Below-Median Employees 
multiplied by 1 15% for ma1es 
and 125% for fema1es, each 
with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 
scales was used. The mortality 
rate assumption used was set 
hased upon an experience study 
perlormed by the prior actuary 
on plan data for the period of 
iuly 1, 2014 through June 30, 
20 19, and review ofsimilar Iaw 
enforcement mortality. 

Non-disabled members-

 

mortality rates for 2020 were 
based on the RP-2014 Blue 
Collar (males/females) and 
White Collar (females) Healthy 
Annuitant Tables projected on a 
fully generational basis by 
Mortality lmprovement Scale 
MP-2018. Disabled members - 
morta1ity rates based on the RP-
2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality 
Table, with no projection for 
morta1ity improvement. 

Termination, disability, and 
retirement assumptions were 
projected based on a five-year 
(2014-2018) experience study of 
the Systems members. 
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The present va1ue of future 
retirement benefits is based on 
benetits currently being paid by 
the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living 
increases. The present values do 
not include provisions for potential 
future increases not yet authorized 
by the Board ofTrustees. 

The present va1ue of future retirement 
benefits is based on benefits currently being 
paid by the System and includes previously 
granted costs of living increases. The 
projected benefit payments do not include 
provisions for potential future increases not 
yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as 
they were deemed not to be substantively 
automatic. 

CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

MERS MPERS 
Salary Plan A Years of Salary 
Increases 1-4 years of service - 6.4% Service Growth 

More than 4 years of service - ________ Rate 
4.5% 1-2 12.30% 

Above 2 4.70% 

LASERS 
Salary increases were projected based on a 
2014-2018 experience study ofthe Systems 
members. The salaiy increase ranges for 
specific types ofmembers are: 

Member Lower Upper 
Type Range Range 

Regular 3.O% 12.8% 
Judges 2.6% 5.1% 

Corrections 3.6% 13.8% 
Hazardous 3.6% 13.8% 

Duty 
Wildlife 3.6% 13.8% 

Cost of Living The System is authorized 
Adjustments under state law to grant a cost 

of living increase to members 
who have been retired for a 
least one year. The adjustment 
cannot exceed 2% of the 
retirees original benefit for 
each full calendar year since 
retirement and may only be 
granted if sufficient funds are 
available Iìom investment 
income in excess of normal 
requirements. State law allows 
the System to grant additional 
cost of living increases to all 
retirees and benetjciaries who 
are age sixty-five and above 
equal to 2% of the benefit 
being received on October 1, 
1977 or the original benefit, if 
retirement commenced afier 
that date. 

MIERS - The actuarial assulnptions used in the June 30, 202 1 valuation were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period july 2013 through June 30, 2018. 

MPERS - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the assumptions 
used in the June 30, 20 19 actuarial fi1nding valuation and were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of july 1, 2014 through June 30, 20 19. 

LASERS - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an 
experience study for the period july 1, 2014 through June 30, 2018. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions (continued) 

The following table provides a summary of the best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class included in each of the Retirement Systems target asset allocations as of June 
30, 2021: 

Long-Term Expected Real Rate ofRetum 
MERS MPERS LASERS 
2.31% - - 

- 3.47% 9.21% 
1.65% - - 

- O.59% 4.43% 
O.39% 1.O1% 6.93% 

- - (0.29)% 

Target Allocation 
Asset Class MERS MPERS LASERS 
Public equity 53% - 0% 
Equities - 56% 54% 
Public fixed income 38% 
Fixed income - 
Altematives 9% 
Cash - 
Other - 

Total 100% _________ __________ 
Inflation 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

Ðiscount Rate 

100% 100% 4.35% 5.07% 5.81% 
2.60% 2.22% 2.30% 
6.95% 7.30% 7.61% 

The projection ofcash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plans fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods ofprojected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS, MPERS and 
LASERS was 6.85%, 6.75% and 7.40%, respectively for the year ended June 30, 202 1. 

Sensitivity of the Employers Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate 

The following table presents the Citys proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability (NPL) using the 
discount rate of each Retirement System as well as what the Citys proportionate share of the NPL would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one percentage-point 
higher than the current rate used by each ofthe Retirement Systems: 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

12. Defined Benefit Pension Pians (continued) 

Current 
1.O% Decrease Discount Rate 1.O% Increase 

MERS A 
Rates 
Citys Share ofNPL 

MPERS 
Rates 
Citys Share ofNPL 

LASERS 
Rates 
Citys Share ofNPL 

5.85% 
$ 10,636,600 $ 

5.75% 
$ 9,568,294 $ 

6.40% 
$ 27,294 $ 

6.85% 
7,181,791 $ 

6.75% 
5,490,053 $ 

7.40% 
20,145 $ 

7.85% 
4,263,727 

7.75% 
2,086,097 

8.40% 
14,061 

Payables to the Pension Plan 

The City had the following amounts due to each of the retirement systems at May 3 1, 2022: 
MERS $152,043 
MPERS $ 94,089 

Support of Non-employer Contributing Entities 

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not in a special 
flinding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. The City recognizes revenue in 
an amount equal to their proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these non-
employer contributing entities. The City recognized revenue as a result of support received from MERS 
of$192,667 and MPERS of$230,160. 

13.Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (OPEB) 

General tnformation about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description — The City of Gonzales (the City) provides certain continuing health care and Iife 
insurance benefits for its retired employees. The City of Gonzaless OPEB PIan (the OPEB Plan) is a 
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the City. The authority to establish and/or 
amend the obligation of the employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are 
accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Codification Section P52 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions—Reporting for Benefits Not 
Provided Through Trusts That Meet Specijìed Criteria—Defined Benefit. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Other Post-Emnioyment Benefits (OPEBÌ (continued) 

Benefits Provided — Medica1 benefits are provided through a comprehensive medica1 plan and are made 
available to employees upon actual retirement. The employees are covered by a retirement system whose 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 25 years of service at any age; or, age 60 
and 10 years ofservice. 

Employees covered by benefit terms — At May 3 l, 2022, the following employees were covered by the 
beneflt terms: 

Inactive employees or beneflciaries currently receiving benefit payments 20 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments - 
Active employees 119 

139 

Total OPEB Liability 

The Citys total OPEB liability of $9,606,768 was measured as of May 3 l, 2022 and was dctcrmincd by 
an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumplions and other inputs — The total OPEB liability in the May 3 l, 2022 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to a11 periods included 
in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inf1ation 2.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
Discount rate 2.26% annually (Beginning ofYear to Determine ADC) 

3.16% annually (As ofEnd ofYear Measurement Date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates Flat 4.0% annually 
Mortality SOA RP-2000 Table 

The discount rate was based on the average of the Bond Buyers 20 Year General Obligation municipal 
bond index as of May 3 l, 2022, the end of the applicable measurement period. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the May 3 l, 2022 valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
eva1uations of the assumptions from June 1, 2009 to May 3 1, 2022. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Other Post-Emnloyment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Changes in the Totai OPEB Liability 

Balance at May 31, 2021 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and actual cxperience 
Changes in assumptions 
Benefit payments and net transfers 

Net changes 

Ba1ance at May 3 1, 2022 

$ 10,555,853 

3 10,502 
235,512 
258,808 

(1,483,951) 
(269,956) 
(949,085) 

$ 9,606,768 

Sensilivlly ofthe total OPEB liabillly lo changes in lhe discounl rale - The following presents the total 
OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the Citys total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2. 16%) or 1-percentage-point higher (4. 16%) than 
the current discount rate: 

1.O% Decrease Current Discount 1.O% Increase 
(2.16%) Rate (3.16%) (4.16%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 11,610,291 $ 9,606,768 $ 8,060,306 

Sensilivily oflhe total OPEB liabilily to changes in the heallhcare cost trendrates — The following presents 
the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the Citys total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (3 .0%) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (5.0%) than the current healthcare trend rates: 

1.O% Decrease Current Trend 1.O% lncrease 
(3.O%) (4.O%) (5.O%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 8,254,836 $ 9,606,768 $ 11,374,177 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended May 31, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of$489,918. At May 31, 2022, the City 
reported deferred outflows ofresources and deferred inflows ofresources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 573,027 
1,900,757 

$ 2,473,784 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ (800,518) 
(1,271,958) 

$ (2,072,476) 
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NOTES TO FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

13. Other Post-EmDlovment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending May 3 1: 
2023 $ (56,096) 
2024 (56,096) 
2025 (56,096) 
2026 (56,096) 
2027 (56,096) 

Thereafter 681,788 
Total $ 401,308 

14.Continencies & ( o 

Commitments 
At May 31, 2022, the City had outstanding cornrnitrncnts rcsulting frorn construction contracts in progrcss 
of$2,015,705. 

Litigation 
Various lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of the City management, the potential loss 
on lawsuits will not be material to the Citys basic financial statements. 

Grant ComÐliance 
The City receives state and federal assistance through various grant programs. Management is confident 
that all significant grant conditions have been met; however, grantor agencies routinely review grant 
activity and could request reimbursement if a dispute occurs regarding compliance with grant conditions. 

15. Risk Manaement 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a member of two separate 
trust funds established by the Louisiana Municipal Association that encompasses self-insurance of (1) 
Municipal professional liability and comprehensive general liability, and (2) Statutory workers 
compensation. The City carries commercial insurance for all other risk ofloss. 

The trust funds for professional liability/comprehensive general liability and statutory workers 
compensation are pooling arrangements whereby there is sharing a risk among the participants ofthe trust 
funds. The City reports its premiums as insurance expenditures and expenses these premiums over the pro 
rata periods involved. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

16. Concentration of Creðit Risk-Proprietary Funð 

Accounts receivable from utility customers were comprised of the following sources: 
residential — 52%, commercial — 33%; other governmental agencies — 4%. Outstanding balances are 
partially secured by deposits made when service is requested. 

17. Tax Abatement 

The City entered into an agreement with the lndustrial Development Board of the City of Gonzales, 
Louisiana (IDB) pursuant to Part 11 ofchapter 27 of Title 33 ofthe Louisiana Revised Statutes ofthe 1950, 
as amended (La. R.S. 3 3 :903 8.3 1 to 3 3 :9038.42, inclusive) (the Tax Increment Development Act.) These 
statutes grant the City the authority to create economic development districts, and through itself or certain 
other issuers of bonds, including local industrial development boards, to issue bonds and pledge to the 
payment of such bonds the incremental increases in sales taxes derived from the project or development 
located in the economic district and financed with such bonds. The City has agreed to abate 1.5 cents of 
its 2 cents sales tax collected within the economic development district. The State of Louisiana agreed to 
abate 1.5 cents of its sales tax collected within the district up to a maximum of $10,500,000. The IDB 
issued Tax Increment Revenue Bonds to assist Cabela s Retail LA, LLC and Carlisle Resort, L.L.C. with 
the acquisition of land, construction and equipping of a Cabelas retail outlet and certain infrastructure. 
The entire amount of the sales tax is dedicated to the payment of the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds issued 
by the Industria1 Development Board of the City of Gonzales. For the year ended May 3 1, 2022 the City 
abated $1,030,361 ofsales taxes. 

The City created the Tanger Ma11 Economic Development District, (the District) pursuant to La. R. S. 
33:9038.32. La L.S. 33:9038.39 permits economic development districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 
2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 2999 to levy a 1% sales tax in the District for twenty 
years. The City of Gonzales, Tanger Ma11 Economic District, and Tanger Properties Limited Partnership 
entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby 70% of the proceeds of the tax will be used to 
reimburse Tanger Properties Limited Partnership for documented construction cost to enlarge the 
buildings, tenant allowances and improvements to the infrastructure up to $ 14,836,092. The remaining 
30% of the tax may be expended by the City or the District to pay for economic development projects in 
the City, whether inside or outside of the District. For the year ended May 3 1, 2022 the City abated 
$762,525. 

The City created the Conway Economic Development District pursuant to La. R.S. 33:9038.32. La L.S. 
33 :9038.39 permits economic development districts to levy sales and use taxes up to 2% and to levy 
occupancy taxes up to 2%. The City of Gonzales adopted Ordinance No. 4065 to levy 1% sales and 1% 
hotel tax in the District for twenty-five years. The City of Gonzales, Conway Economic District, State of 
Louisiana and Conway Development LLC entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement whereby the 
proceeds of the tax collections in the District will be used to reimburse Conway Development LLC for 
Phase 1 & 2 infrastructure improvements. For the year ended May 3 1, 2022, the City abated $125,806. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

18. Subseguent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 28, 2022, the date that the financial 
statements were available to be issued, noting the following subsequent events have been evaluated for 
inclusion in these financial statements. 

On September 29, 2022, the City received the remaining $2,029,537 of the American Recue Plan Act 
fìnding. Management wìll spend funds in accordance with the compliance program requirements. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 

original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Franchise fees 
Licenses and permits 
Fees, fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous 
Fire department revenue 
Grant revenue 
Investment earnings (losses) 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety: 

Police 
Fire 

Streets and drainage 
Sanitation 
Recreation, building and grounds 
Civic center 
Code enforcement 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FLNANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Tota1 other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund ba1ance 

Fund Blance, Beginning of yeir 

Fund Balance, End of Year  

$ 13,007,561 $ 13,307,561 $ 15,666,641 
1,054,000 1,054,000 1,332,121 
1,513,000 1,513,000 1,647,186 

157,500 157,500 167,137 
240,600 297,600 519,516 
605,000 625,000 795,369 

1,196,940 3,275,940 2,853,194 
37,500 37,500 (370,529) 

17,812,101 20,268,101 22,610,635 

2,309,330 4, 150,663 4,082,417 

6,227,000 6,500,000 6,815,938 
3,738,500 3,819,500 4,000,834 
1,470,100 1,481,033 1,442,288 
1,174,500 1,276,633 1,241,106 
1,619,944 1,634,511 1,684,978 

70,000 70,000 79,903 
402,500 403,100 347,652 

17,011,874 19,335,440 19,695,116 

800,227 932,661 2,915,519 

- 72,900 
(3,000,000) (3,000,000) - 
(3,000,000) (3,000,000) 72,900 

(2,199,773) (2,067,339) 2,988,419 

13,013,255 13,013,255 14,481,313 

$ 10,813,482 S 10,945,916 $ 17,469,732 



C1TY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NZET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022 

2022 2021 2020 2019 

$ 310,502 $ 304,550 $ 216,941 $ 201,657 
235,5 12 266,230 295,234 297,987 

258,808 (1,088,074) 468,258 (32,650) 
(1,483,951) 467,986 1,700,314 407,746 

(269,956) (259,850) (217,678) (226,957) 
(949,085) (309, 158) 2,463,069 647,783 

10,555,853 10,865,011 8,401,942 7,754,159 

$ 9,606,768 $ 10,555,853 $ 10,865,011 $ 8,401,942 

$ 7,471,076 $ 7,183,737 $ 6,525,888 $ 6,274,892 

128.59% 146.94% 166.49% 133.90% 

None None None None 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost 
Interest 
Differences between expected and 
actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Benefit payments 
Net change in total OPEB liahility 

Total OPEB liaL)ility - beginning 

Total OPEB liability - ending 

Covered-employee payroll 

Net OPEB liabilíty as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefil Change: 

Changes ofAssumplions: 
Discountrate: 3.16% 2.26% 2.48% 3.56% 
Mortality: RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2000 RP-2000 
Trend: 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

This schedule is intended to show information for IOyears. Additional years will be displayed as they become availahle. 
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
MERS (Plan A)
Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 2.58198% 2.59321% 2.57116% 2.55685% 2.55351% 2.62655% 2.57570%
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Governmental Activities 5,242,707$    8,520,749$    8,165,439$  7,940,313$  8,225,439$  8,289,410$  7,176,519$  
Business-type Activities 1,939,084$    2,690,763$    2,578,560$  2,646,771$  2,456,949$  2,476,058$  2,024,146$  

Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 5,031,544$    4,956,325$    4,728,538$  4,660,826$  4,637,341$  4,692,636$  4,399,294$  
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

as a percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 142.7353% 226.2062% 227.2161% 227.1504% 230.3559% 229.4120% 209.1396%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 77.8200% 64.5200% 64.6800% 63.9400% 62.4940% 62.1103% 66.1792%

MPERS
Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 1.02992% 0.97671% 0.86367% 0.88568% 0.91809% 0.09666% 0.94190%
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Governmental Activities 5,490,053$    9,027,058$    7,843,543$  7,487,593$  8,015,340$  9,059,615$  7,378,794$  
Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 3,114,733$    2,801,533$    2,593,846$  2,608,319$  2,589,029$  2,730,300$  2,517,759$  
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

as a percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 176.2608% 322.2185% 302.3905% 287.0658% 309.5887% 331.8176% 293.0699%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 84.0881% 70.9450% 71.0078% 71.8871% 70.0815% 66.0422% 70.7303%

LASERS
Employer's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.00037% 0.00037% 0.00037% 0.00039% 0.00040% 0.00040% 0.00038%
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Governmental Activities 20,145$         30,519$         26,734$      26,530$      28,366$      31,489$      26,118$      
Employer's Covered-Employee Payroll 7,110$           7,110$           6,778$        7,110$        7,110$        7,110$        7,110$        
Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset):

as a percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 283.3333% 429.2405% 394.4231% 373.1364% 398.9592% 442.8833% 367.3418%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 72.8000% 58.0000% 62.9000% 64.3000% 62.5437% 57.7280% 62.6632%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

(*) The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end of the respective retirement system.

The three Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows:
MERS (Plan A) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System
LASERS = Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System

See accompanying notes to the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability

CITY OF GONZALES
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 (*)
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
MERS (Plan A)

Contractually Required Contribution1 1,536,666$ 1,477,406$ 1,364,049$   1,219,703$ 1,190,290$ 1,032,373$ 892,729$    

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution2 1,536,405 1,475,691 1,364,968 1,221,843 1,189,210 1,032,373 892,729
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 261$           1,715$        (919)$           (2,140)$       1,080$        -$                -$                

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll3 5,173,959$ 5,025,192$ 4,942,205$   4,708,024$ 4,853,118$ 4,608,662$ 4,520,147$ 
Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 29.7000% 29.4000% 27.6000% 25.9069% 24.5263% 22.4007% 19.7500%

MPERS

Contractually Required Contribution1 943,053$    1,017,982$ 892,695$      813,414$    816,586$    803,082$    763,876$    

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution2 941,903      1,018,364   892,167        815,866      818,259      797,594      763,876      
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 1,150$        (382)$          528$             (2,452)$       (1,673)$       5,488$        -$                

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll3 3,133,065$ 3,025,207$ 2,746,754$   2,531,566$ 2,646,164$ 2,550,579$ 2,576,055$ 
Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 30.1000% 33.6500% 32.5000% 32.1309% 30.8592% 31.4863% 29.6529%

MPERS- NON_HAZARDOUS

Contractually Required Contribution1 17,323$      18,544$      17,759$        16,740$      16,131$      16,145$      14,646$      

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution2 17,295        18,546        17,748          16,799        16,131        16,145        14,646        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 28$             (2)$              11$               (59)$            -$                -$                -$                

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll3 57,550$      55,108$      54,642$        52,089$      51,904$      48,206$      46,274$      
Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 30.1008% 33.6503% 32.5006% 32.1373% 31.0785% 33.4917% 31.6506%

LASERS

Contractually Required Contribution1 3,064$        3,079$        2,972$          2,718$        2,851$        2,702$        2,729$        

Contributions in Relation to Contractually Required Contribution2 3,061          3,076          2,965            2,819          2,851          2,702          2,729          
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3$               3$               7$                 (101)$          -$                -$                -$                

Employer's Covered Employee Payroll3 7,110$        7,110$        7,110$          6,778$        7,110$        7,110$        7,110$        
Contributions as a % of Covered Employee Payroll 43.0942% 43.3052% 41.8003% 40.1003% 40.0985% 38.0028% 38.3826%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

For reference only:
1 Employer contribution rate multiplied by employer's covered employee payroll
2 Actual employer contributions remitted to Retirement Systems
3 Employer's covered employee payroll amount for the year ended May 31 of each year

The three Retirement Systems reported in this schedule are as follows:
MERS (Plan A) = Municipal Employees' Retirement System
MPERS = Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System
LASERS = Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System

See accompanying notes to the schedule of pension contributions

CITY OF GONZALES
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022
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CITY OF GONZALES 
NOTES TO SCHEÐULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET 

PENSION LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDEÐ MAY 31. 2022 

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS AND ASSUMPTIONS RELATED TO 
ÐEFINEÐ PENSION PLANS 

Changes of Benefit Terms include: 

Municipal EmployeesT Retirement System - Plan A 
There were no changes ofbenefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2022. 

Municital Police Employees Retirement Systeir 
There were no changes ofbenefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2022. 

Louisiana State EmployeesT Retirement Systen 
There were no changes ofbenefit terms for the year ended May 31, 2022. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

Municipal EmployeesT Retirement System - Plan A 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended May 3 1, 2022. 

Municipal Police EmployeesT  Retirement System 
There were no changes ofassumptions for the year ended May 31, 2022. 

Louisiana State Employees Retirement System 
There were no changes of assumptions for the year ended May 3 1, 2022. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS DESCRIPTIONS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for sales tax collections within the Tanger Ma11 
Economic Development District, Conway Economic Development District, and the PACE Center 
Economic Development District. 

TANGER MALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for fiinding used in economic development projects selected by the District 
through sales tax revenues collected in the district. 

CONWAY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for the flinding dedicated to infrastructure improvements in the District through 
a sales tax and hotel occupancy tax collected in the district. 

PACE CENTER ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

This fund accounts for the funðing purpose of financing, construction, maintenance and operation 
ofan event and conference center for the City through a hotel occupancy tax collected in the district. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNÐS 

MAY 31. 2022 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNÐS 

Tanger Ma11 Conway PACE Center Total 
Economic Economic Economic Special Revenue 

Development District Development District Development District Funds 
ASSETS 
cashandcashequivalents $ 1,746,364 $ 81,346 $ 1,438,228 $ 3,265,938 
Receivables 183,517 32,445 115,844 331,806 
Rçstricted cash: 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,797,421 - 175,034 1,972,455 

Totalassets $ 3,727,302 $ 113,791 $ 1,729,106 $ 5,570,199 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 

Total liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

Total fuud balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

$ 128,462 $ - $ 85 $ 128,547 

128,462 - 85 128,547 

3,598,840 113,791 1,729,021 5,441,652 

3,598,840 113,791 1,729,021 5,441,652 

$ 3,727,302 $ 113,791 $ 1,729,106 $ 5,570,199 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES, ANÐ 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDEÐ MAY 31. 2022 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUINDS 

Tanger Ma11 Conway PACE Center Total 
Economic Economic Economic Special Revenue 

Development District Development Dstrct Development Dstrct Funðs 
REVENUES 

Taxes S 1,089,320 $ 125,806 S 725,497 S 1,940,623 
lnterest 2,526 - 34 2,560 

Totalrevenues 1,091,846 125,806 725,531 1,943,183 

Economc development 
Total expenðitures 

Excess ofrevenues over 
expenðitures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfer out 

Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balances  

762,523 
762,523 

329,323 125,806 

- (137,699) 
- (137,699) 

329,323 (11,893)  

721,688 1,176,817 

- (137,699) 
- (137,699) 

721,688 1,039,118 

- 3,843 766,366 
3,843 766,366 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 3,269,517 125,684 1,007,333 4,402,534 
Funð Balance, End of Year $ 3,598.840 - š 113,791 $ 1,729,021 $ 5,441,652 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF PER ÐIEM PAIÐ 

YEAR ENÐED MAY 31, 2022 

Councilmen: MONTHLY - ANNUAL 

Tyler Turner $ 1,000 $ 12,000 

Harold Stewart $ 1,000 12,000 

Kirk Boudreaux $ 1,000 12,000 

John Berthelot $ 1,000 12,000 

Timothy Riley $ 1,000 12,000 

$ 60,000 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

SCHEÐULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS. ANÐ OTHER PAYMENTS 

TO AGENCY HEAÐ OR CHIEF EXECUT1VE OFFICER 

MAY 31, 2022 

Agency Head Name/Title: Barney Arceneaux, Mayor 

Purpose 
Salary 
Benefits - health insurance 
Benefits - retireinent 
Clothing allowance 
Per dieins 
Travel 
Conference fees 

Arnount 
$ 143,516 

12,558 
42,337 

650 

490 
$ 199.551 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022 

Federai Ageiic or 
CFDA las-through 

Federal (;iantoi/las-thio,uli (rantor!lrogiain litle Nunìber Nurnber 

U•s. Departrnent of Tranpnitation 

Highway Safey Clusfrr 
Passed through Louisiana Highway Safety Cominission 

State and Conrnìunity Highway Safety 20.600 2021-30-63 
State and Connnunity Highway Safety 20.600 2022-30-61 
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 2021-30-63 
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 2022-30-61 

Total Highway Safety Cluster 

Total U.S. Departinent of Transportation 

t.S. Departinent ofjustice 

Direct Pass through U.S. Department ofJustice 
Law Enforcement Assistance Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Laboratory 
Analysis 16.001 unknown 
Equitable Sharing Program 16.922 LA0030200 

Total Direct Pass through U.S. Department ofJustice 

Passed through Office ofjuvenile Justice & Delinquency Prevention 
juvenile Mentoring Prograin 

Total Passed through Office ofiuvenile Justice & Delinquency Prevention 

Passed through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 
Edward Byrne Meinorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 

Total Passed through Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement 

16.726 2021-FED-OJJDP-B4B-LA-1 

16.738 2019-DJ-01-6204 

Total U.S. Departinent ofJustice 

U.S. Departanent of Agrlculture 

Direct Pass through U.S. Department ofAgriculture 
Einergency Watershed Protection Program 10.923 

Total U.S. Department ofAgriculture 

Us. Departinent of Hoineland Securly 

Passed through Louisiana Governors Office ofHomeland Security 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 

Total U.S. Departinent ofHoineland Security 

Total Federal Assistance Expended 

See accoinpanying notes to the schedule of expenditurcs of federal awards. 

Federal 
Expenditures 

S 1,935 
3,600 
5,985 

562 
12,082 

12,082 

28,585 
5,500 

34,085 

17,764 
17,764 

4,884 
4,884 

56,733 

548,8 18 

548,8 18 

8,265 
2,131,436 

2,139,701 

$ 2,757,334 

NR217217 

GOHSEP, 4606-DR-LA 
GOHSEP, 4611-DR-LA 

65 



CITY OF GONZALES 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expeuditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of the City of Gonzales under programs of the federal government for the year euded May 3 1, 2022. 
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordauce with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Unijbrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the City of Gonzales, it is not intended to and does not present the financial 
position, chauges in flnancial position, or where applicable cash flows of the City of Gonzales. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting for proprietary fund 
and modified accrual basis ofaccounting governmental funds. Such expenditures are recognized following 
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidauce, wherein certain types of expenditures are not 
allowable or are limited to reimbursement. 

INDIRECT COST RATE 

The City of Gonzales has not electcd to usc the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost as a1lowed under the 
Uniform Guidauce. 

SUBRECIPIENTS 

There were no awards passed through to subrecipients. 

RECONCILIATION OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Federal revenues as reported on the Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, 
aud Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Fund Types 

Add: Equitable sharing revenues received in prior year 
Less: DEA expenditures included in prior year 
Less: FEMA expenditures included in prior year 
Federal grant expenditures as reported on the Schedule ofExpenditures of 
Federal Awards 

$ 2,775,738 
5,500 

(1,276) 
(22,628) 

$ 2,757,334 
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First Six Month 
Period Ended 

11130121 

73,765 

84,588 
17,480 
3,791 

Second Six 
Month Period 
Ended 5/31/22 

73,428 

2,290 
91,382 
15,365 
2,358 

105,859 111,395 

CHY OF GONZALES 
JUSrICE SYS•IEM FUNDING SCIIEDULE - COLLECTENGIDESBURSING ENTITY 

AS REOUIREI)  BY ACT 87 OF TI1E 2020 REGULAR LEGISLATIVE SESSION 
MAY3L2022 

(:ash Basis Presentation 

lleginning Balance of Aniounts (ollected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections 
Bond Fees 
Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Criminal Fines - Contempt 
Restitution 
Other 
Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursernents Io Governrnents & Nonprofits: 

Ascension Parish Clerk ofCourt Crimina1/Court CostslFees 
Ascension Parish Court Fund/Cnmina1 Court CostslFees 
23rd iudicial District Public Defenders Office/Cnminal Court CostslFees 
Parish ofAscension Witness Fund/Criminal Court CostslFees 
LDHH Traumatic Head & Spinal Cord lnjuiy Trust Funð/Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
LA State Police Academy Applied Technology-Intoxi1yzer/Crimina1 Court CostslFees 
Treasurer, State ofLouisiana-CMIS/Criminal Court CostslFees 
Ascension Clerk FundlCriminal Court Costs/Fees 
Ascension Parish CourtlCnminal Fines - Contempt 
District Attomeys Office 23rd iDClCriminal Court Costs/Fees 
Crime Stoppers/Criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Louisiana Supreme CourtlCriminal Court Costs/Fees 
LA Commission of Law EnforccrnentlCriminal Court Costs/Fees 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Collection Fee for Collecting/Disbursing to Others Based on Percentage ofCollection 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Part (ollection or Processing Agencies 
Bond Fee Refunds 
Restitution Payments to lndividuals (additional dctail is not required) 
Other Disbursements to Individua1s (additional detail is not required) 
Payments to 3rd Party CollectionlProcessing Agencies 

Subtotal DisbursementstRetainage 

Total: Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not DisbursedlRetained (i.e. cash on hand) 

4,380 3,855 
5,490 4,680 

16,380 14,040 
12,444 10,608 

725 510 
775 875 

1,098 936 
9,445 9,405 

13,100 11,510 
7,320 6,240 

732 624 
177 149 

1,815 1,974 

12,498 12,136 

12,990 2,500 
3,592 2,469 

3,235 2,914 

106,196 85,425 

$ 73,428 $ 99,398 
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DDR 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GO VERNMENTA UÐITING STANÐARÐS 

To the llonorable Mr. Bamey Arceneaux, Mayor 
and the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
City ofGonzales, Louisiana, as ofand for the year ended May 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise City of Gonzales, Louisiana s basic financial statements and have 
issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2022. 

Report on Interna1 Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered City of Gonzales, 
Louisianas intemal control over fmancial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Gonzales, Louisiana s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
City of Gonzales, Louisianas intemal control. 

A deficiency in internai controi exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
inisstatements on a timely basis. A materiai weakness is a deficiency, or a coinbination of deficiencies, in 
intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material inisstatement of the entitys 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signijìcant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet iinportant enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be inaterial 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies 
in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in intemal 
control, described in the accoinpanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as iteins 2022-001 and 
2022-002 that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
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Report on Compliance anð Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Gonzales, Louisiana s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the fmancial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was 
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

City of Gonzales, Louisianas Respoiise to Finðings 

GovernmentAuditing Standards requires the auditor to perfonn limited procedures on the City ofGonzales, 
Louisianas response to the fmdings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The City of Gonzales, Louisianas response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion 
on the response. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys intemal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entitys intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this comrnunication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 28, 2022 



DDR 
DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the llonorable Mr. Bamey Arceneaux, Mayor 
aiid the Members of the City Council 
City of Gonzales, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Prograin 

We have audited City of Gonzales, Louisiana s compliance with the types of compliance requirelnents 
identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Suppiement that could have a direct and inaterial 
effect on each of City of Gonzales, Louisiana s inajor federal prograins for the year ended May 3 1, 2022. 
City of Gonzales, Louisianas inajor federal programs are identified in the suminary of auditors results 
section of the accompanying schedule of fmdings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, City of Gonzales, Louisiana coinplied, in all inaterial respects, with the types of coinpliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended May 3 1, 2022. 

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code ofFederai Reguiations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principies, and 
Audit Requirements for Federai Awards (Uniform Guidance). 0ur responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of City of Gonzales, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. 0ur audit does not provide a legal determination of City of 
Gonzales, Louisianas compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective intemal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, mles, and provisions of contracts or grant agreelnents applicable to City of 
Gonzales, Louisiana s federal programs. 
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Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofCompliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on City ofGonzales, Louisianas compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material 
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of Gonzales, Louisianas compliance with the 
requirements ofeach major federal program as a whole. 

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks ofmateria1 noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and desigu 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding City of Gonza1es, Louisianas compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding ofCity ofGonzales, Louisianas internal control over compliance relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test 
and report on interna1 control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Gonza1es, Louisianas 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Interna1 Control over Compliance 

A deflciency in internal control over compliance exists when the desigu or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal conrrol over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signijìcant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination ofdeficiencies, in interna1 control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration ofinterna1 control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors 
Responsibilities for the Audit ofCompliance section above and was not desigued to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be materia1 weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance. Given these liniitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as deflned above. However, 
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matcrial wcakncsscs or significant dcficicncics in intcmal control ovcr compliancc may cxist that wcrc not 
idcntificd. 

Our audit was not dcsigncd for thc purposc of cxprcssing an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of intcmal control 
ovcr compliancc. Accordingly, no such opinion is cxprcsscd. 

Thc purposc of this rcport on intcmal control ovcr compliancc is solcly to dcscribc thc scopc of our tcsting 
of intcmal control ovcr compliancc and thc rcsults of that tcsting bascd on thc rcquircmcnts of thc Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this rcport is not suitablc for any othcr purposc. 

Gonzalcs, Louisiana 
Octobcr 28, 2022 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

1.The auditors report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of City of 
Gonzales were prepared in accordance with GAAP. 

2. Two significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the 
Independent Auditors Report on Interna1 Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are reported. 

3. No instances ofnoncompliance material to the financial statements ofCity ofGonzales, which would 
be required to be reported in accordance with Government Audiling Standards, was disclosed during the 
audit. 

Federal Awards 

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesscs relating to thc audit over the major federal award 
programs were reported. 

5.The auditors report on compliance for the major fedcral award programs for City ofGonza1es expresses 
an unmoðified opinion on the major federal program. 

6. There are no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.5 16(a) 
in this schedule. 

7. The following program was tested as a major program: 

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Proram or Cluster 
97.036 Disastcr Grants-Public Assistancc (Presidentially 

Declared Disasters) 

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between types A & B was $750,000. 
9. City ofGonzales did qua1iii as a low-risk auditee. 

SECTION 11 — FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Sigiiificant Deficieiicv - Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

2022-001 Bank Reconciliations 

CONÐITION: The City did not reconcile nine monthly bank statements in a timely manner. 

CRITERIA: Interna1 controls should be in place to provide for the tiniely reconciliation ofa1l cash account 
balances and to ensure all account activity is properly recorded on the Citys general ledger. 

CAUSE: Interna1 controls are not in place to ensure the tiniely reconciliation ofall cash accounts. 

EFFECT: Failure to reconcile a11 cash accounts in a tiiiìcly iiìanncr could lcad to missing cash and 
incomplete financial statements. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022 

Significant Deficiency - Interna1 Control over Financial Reporting (continued) 

RECOMMENDATION: AII cash balances as reported on the Citys general ledgcr should bc reconciled 
to appropriate supporting documentation on a monthly basis. 

MANAGEMENTS CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: The administration concurs with the audit finding 
and will have cash accounts reconciled on a monthly basis. 

2022-002 Reconciliation and Review Process 

CONDITION: During the course of the audit, instances of unreconciled accounts were noted which 
resulted in various adjustments. 

CRITERIA: Interna1 controls should be strengthened to ensure timely and accurate reconciliations and 
reviews are performed between accounting reports and underlying supporting documentation. 

CAUSE: Policies and procedures adopted or implemented by the City to provide oversight were not 
followed at the end of the fiscal year. 

EFFECT: Various adjusting entries had to be made during the audit to balance accounts to the general 
ledger. 

RECOMMENÐATION: Management should ensure that those charged with review oftransactions 
and account balances understand their role in the internal control process and are performing an 
effective review to confirm that transactions are properly recorded and balanced in the financial 
records at year end. Evidence of the review as well as the proper timing of the review should be 
documented. 

MANAGEMENTS CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN: The administration concurs with the audit finding 
and intends to have accounts and other financial information, as deemed appropriate, reconciled and 
reviewed on a timely basis to ensure there is adequate financial oversight going forward. 

SECTION 111 - NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

Nonc notcd. 

SECTION 1V - FINDINGS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM AUDIT 

None noted. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 
SUMMARY SCHEÐULE OF PRIOR AIJÐIT FINÐINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENÐEÐ MAY 31. 2022 

A.FINÐINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUÐIT 

None noted. 

B.FINÐINGS — NON-COMPLIANCE [TH LAWS ANÐ REGULATIONS 

None noted. 

C.FINDINGS — MAJOR FEÐERAL AWARDS PROGRAM AUÐIT 

None noted. 
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CITY OF GONZALES 

GONZALES. LOUISIANA 

STATEWIÐE AGREED UPON PROCEÐURES 

MAY 31. 2022 



DIEZ, DUPUY & RUIZ, LLC 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDIÏRES 

To the Honorable Mayor Barncy Arcencaux, City Council Members, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performcd the procedures enumeratcd bclow, which wcrc agrccd to by thc City of Gonzalcs (thc 
City) and thc Louisiana Lcgislativc Auditor (LLA) on thc control and compliancc (CIC) arcas idcntificd in 
thc LLAs Statcwidc Agrccd-Upon Proccdurcs (SAUPs) for thc fiscal period Junc 1, 202 1 through May 31, 
2022. Thc Citys managcmcnt is rcsponsiblc for thosc C/C arcas idcntificd in thc SAUPs. 

City of Gonzalcs has agrccd to and acknowlcdgcd that thc proccdurcs performcd arc appropriatc to mcct 
thc intcndcd purposc of thc cngagcmcnt, which is to perform spccificd proccdurcs on thc C/C arcas 
idcntificd in LLAs SAUPs for thc fiscal period Junc 1, 202 1 through May 31, 2022. Additionally, LLA 
has agrccd to and acknowlcdgcd that thc proccdurcs performcd arc appropriatc for its purposcs. This rcport 
may not bc suitablc for any othcr purposc. Thc proccdurcs performcd may not addrcss all thc itcms of 
intcrcst to a uscr of this rcport and may not mcct thc nccds of all uscrs of this rcport and, as such, uscrs arc 
rcsponsiblc for dctcrmining whcthcr thc proccdurcs performcd arc appropriatc for thcir purposcs. 

Thc proccdurcs and associatcd findings arc as follows: 

Written Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspcct thc cntitys writtcn policics and proccdurcs and obscrvc whcthcr thcy addrcss cach 
ofthc following catcgorics and subcatcgorics if applicablc to public funds and cntitys operations: 

a) Budgeting, including prcparing, adopting, monitoring, and amcnding thc budgct. 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefunctions noted above. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchascs arc initiatcd; (2) how vcndors arc addcd to thc vcndor 
list; (3) thc prcparation and approval proccss of purchasc rcquisitions and purchasc ordcrs; (4) 
controls to cnsurc compliancc with thc Public Bid Law; and (5) documcntation rcquircd to bc 
maintaincd for all bids and pricc quotcs. 

Written poiicies andprocedures were obtained and address thefunctions noted above. 

c) Ðisbursements, including proccssing, rcvicwing, and approving. 

Written poiicies andprocedures were obtained and address thefiinctions noted above. 

d) Receij,ts/Collections, including rccciving, rccording, and prcparing dcposits. Also, policics and 
proccdurcs should includc managcmcnts actions to dctcrminc thc complctcncss of all collcctions 
for cach typc of rcvcnuc or agcncy fund additions (c.g. periodic confirmation with outsidc partics, 
rcconciliation to utility billing aftcr cutoff proccdurcs, rcconciliation of traffic tickct numbcr 
scqucnccs, agcncy fund forfciturc monics confirmation). 

Written poiicies andprocedures were obtained and address thefiinctions noted above. 

c) Payroll/Persoiinel, including (1) payroll proccssing, and (2) rcvicwing and approving timc and 
attcndance records, including lcavc and ovcrtimc workcd, and (3) approval proccss for cmploycc(s) 
ratc ofpay or approval and maintcnancc ofpay ratc schcdulcs. 
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Wriîîen policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

O Confracting, including (1) types of services rcquiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval proccss, and (5) monitoring process. 

Wriîten policies andprocedures were obtained a,zd address thefrnctions noted above. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards,fuel cards, P-Cards, f applicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
ofthe statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness offuel card 
purchases). 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursemeni, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category ofexpense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

i) Eihics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42: 1 1 1 1- 1 121, (2) 
actions to be taken ifan ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and 
officials were notified of any changes to the entitys ethics policy. 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

j) Debi Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Not applicable. 

k) Informaiion Technology Disasier Recovery/Business Continuiiy, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency ofdata backups, (2) storage ofbackups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) tiinely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

1) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annua1 employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies andprocedures were obtained and address thefrnctions noted above. 

Board (or Finance Commiiiee, ifapplicable) 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fisca1 period, as well as the boards 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the boarð/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the boards enabling legislation, charter, bylaws or other equivalent document. 

Obîained and reviewed minutes ofîhe managing boardfor thefiscalperiod noîing that the 
board met with a quorum monthly. 



b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the nonprofit 
accounting model, observe that the minutes reftrenced or includedfinancial activily relating to 
publicfunds fthose publicfunds comprised more than 1O0/  ofthe entily s collections during the 
fiscalperiod. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes ofthe managing boardfor thefiscalperiod noting that the minutes 
included monthly budget-to-actual comparisonsfor the majorfrnds. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. Ifthe gcneral fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

The generalfund reported a positive unrestrictedfrnd balance in the prioryear audit report. 

Ba,zk Reconcilialions 

3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fisca1 period from management and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identii the entitys main operating 
account. Select the entitys main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fisca1 period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

Obtained listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management s 
representation that listing is complete. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

Obtained bank statement and reconciliationfor selected month in theflscalperiodfor the selected 
account noting that the reconciliation has not been prepared within two months of the related 
statement closing date. 

Managements response: Management has ensured that bank reconciliations will beperformed on 
a monthly basis. A review ofthis reconciliation will be done monthly as well to ensureprocedures 
arefollowed. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member ofmanagementlboard member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and 
dated, electronically Iogged); and 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 



c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

Not applicable, the entity did not have any reconciling items that have been outstandingfor more 
than 12 months. 

Collections (excluding electronicfunds transfrrs) 

4. Obtain a listing ofdeposit sites for the flscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites ifless than 5). 

Obtained a listing ofdeposit sites a,id management s representation that listing is complete. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing ofcollection locations and managements representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

Obtained a lisllng ofcollection locations and management s representation that listing is complete. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making baiik 
deposits, unless another employee/officia1 is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-nuinbered receipts) to the deposit. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source anð/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

6. Obtain from management a copy ofthe bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. 



No exceptions are noted as a result ofthisprocedure. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 undcr 
Bank Reconciliations above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were madc 

on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit ifmultiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecllng the deposit datesfor testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each ofthe 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, systclll rcports, and othcr rclatcd colicction 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week ifthe depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100). 

On one deposit, 24% ofthe receipts collected were deposited within two days ofcollections. 

Managements response: Management strives to deposit collections within one day of receipt. 
However, circumstances come up that hinder this process to extend to an additional day. None 
the less, management will continue to make sure daily collections are deposited within one 
business day goingforward. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank staterncnt to the general ledger. 

No exceptions are noted as a resuli oflhis  procedure. 

Non-Pavroll Disbiirseinenls (excluding car(I ¡uirchases/pavinenls, lraiel reiinburseinenls, andpelty cash 
purchases.) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or a11 locations if less than 5). 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to removeprocedures becausepart of 
the entity s publicfunds areftderal majorprogramfunds tested under the entity s Single Audit during 
thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed under the LLA s 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures.. 



9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase rcqucst, approving a purchasc, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to bepeiformed 
zinder the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedure. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entity s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entity s Single 
Audit during thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefrderal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

d) Either the employee/offlcial responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefrderal major program funds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit dziring thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entitys non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain managements representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and that supporting 
documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were received by the entity. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefrderal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be peiformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 



b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) ofsegregation ofduties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

1 1. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards), for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names ofthe persons who maintained 
possession ofthe cards. Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to removeprocedures becausepart of 
the entily s publicfunds arefederal majorprogramfunds tested under the entily s Single Audit during 
thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed under the LLA s 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all if less than 5) that were used 
during the fiscal period. R.andomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each card 
(for a debit card, randonily select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), 
by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain 
the lega1 authority ofcertain public officials (e.g., mayor ofa Lawrason Act municipality); these 
instances should not be reported.)] 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part oflhe entily s publicfunds arefrderal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entily s publicfunds arefrderal major programfunds tested under the entily s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to bepeiformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuci cards, 
randonily select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation ofthe business/public purpose, and 
(3) documentation of the individuals participating in mea1s (for meal charges only). For missing 
receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management 



had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is 
subject to increased scrutiny. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to removeprocedures because part of 
the entity s publicfunds arefederal majorprogramfunds tested under the entity s Single Audit during 
thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed under the LLA s 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

Travel and Travel -Related Expense Reiinbi,rsernenls (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and managements representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained listing oftravel and related expense reimbursements and inanagement s representation that 
listing is complete. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State ofLouisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

Two ofthefive reimbursements used a per diem rate that was more than those rates established 
either by the State ofLouisiana or the US. General Services Administration. 

Managements response: Management used a rate that was approved based on the written policy. 
That rate will be changed in the policy to reflect the rates established either by the State of 
Louisiana or Us. General Services Adminisirc,iion. 

b) If reimburseð using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by docunicntation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 



Confracts 

15. Obtain from management a listing ofall agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selecllon source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts ifless than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioners contract, and: 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to removeprocedures because part of 
the enllty s publicfunds areftderal majorprogramfunds tested under the entity s Single Audit during 
thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be perfonned under the LLA s 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordancc with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), ifrequircd by law. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entity s publicfunds areftderal major programfunds tested under the entity s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to bepeiformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, ifrequired by policy or 
law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entity s publicfunds areftderal major programfunds tested under the entity s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that thc original contract tcrms providcd 
for such an amendment. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entity s publicfunds areftderal major programfunds tested under the entity s Single 
Audit dziring thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed 
under lhe LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions ofthe contract. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entity s publicfunds areftderal major programfunds tested under the entity s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 



Payroll and Personnel 

16.Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed dtiring the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to removeprocedures because part 
ofthe entily s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entiiy s Single Audit 
during thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need 10 be performed under 
ihe LLA s Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

17.Randomly select one pay period during the fisca1 period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under # 16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observe that a11 selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected officia1 is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.) 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entiiy s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entiiy s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entiiy s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entiiy s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need to beperformed 
under the LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

c) Observe any leave accrucd or takcn during the pay period is reflected in the entitys cumulative 
leave records. 

Based on terms of the Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entiiy s publicfunds arefederal major programfunds tested under the entiiy s Single 
Audit during thefiscal period. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be peiformed 
under the LL4 s Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because 
part ofthe entiiy s publicfunds arefrderal major programfunds tested under the entiiy s Single 
Audit during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need 10 bepeiformed 
under the LL4 s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 



18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments dtiring the fiscal 
period and managements representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used iri managements termination 
payment calculations and the entitys policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee 
or officials cumulate leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee or officials authorized pay 
rates in the employee or officia1s personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because part 
of the entiiy s public funds are federal major program funds tested under the entily s Single Audit 
during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees these procedures do not need to be performed under the 
LLA s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

19. Obtain managements representation that employer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, 
garnishments, workers compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
been filed, by required deadlines. 

Based on terms ofthe Agreed Upon Procedures, we are allowed to remove procedures because part 
of the entiiy s public funds are ftderal major program funds tested under the entity s Single Audit 
during thefiscalperiod. Management agrees theseprocedures do not need 10 beperformed under the 
LL4 s Statewide Agreed- Upon Procedures. 

Ethics 

20. Using the 5 random1y se1ected employees/officia1s from procedure # 16 under Payroll and Personnel 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/officia1 completed one hour of 
ethics training during the flscal period. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entitys ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthisprocedure. 

Debt Service 

21. Obtain a listing ofbonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Select a11 debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained 
for each debt instrument issued. 



Obtained a listing ofbonds/notes and other debt insrruments issued during thefiscalperiod and 
management s representation that the listing was complete. Obtained supporting documents noting 
State Bond Commission approval was obtainedfor each new debt instrument issued. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. R.andomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Obtained listing of bonds/notes outstanding and management s representation that listing was 
complete. For one bond, documentation obtained supported the actual reserve balances andpayment 
agreed to those required by debt covenants without exception. 

Fraud Notice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney ofthe parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Management asserted that the entily did not have any misappropriations ofpublicfunds or assets. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523. 1 
concerning the reporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse ofpublic funds. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthisprocedure. 

Inforrnation Technologr Disaster Recoveri/Business continuity 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbaliy discuss the resuits with management, and report 
We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

a. Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent ðocumentation that it has backed up its critical data 
(ifno written documentation, inquire ofpersonnel responsible for backing up critica1 data) and 
observe that such backup occurred within the past week. Ifbackups are stored on a physical 
medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted before being 
transported. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

b. Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 



c. Obtain a listing ofthe entitys computers ctirrently in use, and their related locations, and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

Sexiial Harassn,ent 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and 
Personnel above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe 
that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual 
harassment training during the calendar year. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

27. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises ifthe entity does not have a website). 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

28. Obtain the entitys annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that it includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42:344: 

a. Number and percentage ofpublic servants in the agcncy who havc coinpletcd thc training 
requirements; 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

b. Number ofsexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

c. Number ofcomplaints which resulted in a fincling that sexual harassment occurred; 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

d. Number ofcomplaints in which the finding ofsexual harassmcnt rcsultcd in disciplinc or 
corrective action; and 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 

e. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions are noted as a result ofthis procedure. 



Wc were engaged by City of Gonzales to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective ofwhich would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of City of Gonzales and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope oftesting performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result ofthat testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Gonzales, Louisiana 
October 28, 2022 
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